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Financial Summary

MIBHE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t—HLEE
Results E4 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT TAET

2013 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TETT TR T

Revenue WA 371,725 379,715
Gross profit ER 92,819 94,087
Profit before income tax BT SR A S A 19,386 31,567

Profit attributable to the ViN/NETE SN

owners of the Company FE(ETR 15,732 25,679

360,707 331,088 306,314

84,941 81,222 66,563
18,365 28,301 11,748
13,529 23,152 9,417

As at 31 December

Rt+=-A=+—H
Financial position BTEEARR 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
gl T kER TR Tan
Total assets BEE 203,344 210,034 196,950 158,396 130,639
Interest-bearing borrowings st BEE 879 3,131 9,564 2,478 4,328
Total liabilities BaE 67,587 87,265 99,685 101,663 88,913
Shareholders’ equity A& R iz 135,757 122,769 97,265 56,733 41,726
Current ratio (note 1) mENLLE (MaE 1) 2.79 2.22 1.78 1.36 1.22
Quick ratio (note 2) REPLEE (ffE2) 242 1.98 1.60 1.09 0.95
Return on assets (note 3) B EE B iR =R
(Kiz£3) 7.7% 12.2% 6.9% 14.6% 7.2%
Return on equity (note 4) A% A [E] 3 R
(Ktax4) 11.6% 20.9% 13.9% 40.8% 22.6%
Gearing ratio (note 5) LEEBELX
(BtaEs) 0.6% 2.6% 9.8% 4.4% 10.4%
Inventory turnover days FEREEXE
(note 6) (Kizt6) CENCEVSIAEN 26 days/H 24 days/H 40 days/H 36 days/H
Trade receivables turnover & 5 fE N IBEE
days (note 7) RE(HiaE7) CRXCEVOAEN 57 days/H 72 days/H 46 days/H 44 days/H
Trade payables turnover B S ENFUERE
days (note 8) X (KzE8) CYRCEVEIAEN 67 days/H 78 days/H 92 days/H 98 days/H
Note: BT
1. Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities 1. MENLE = REBEE/ RBEE
2. Quick ratio = current assets less inventory / current liabilities 2. R E=RBEERTE/ RBAE
3. Return on assets = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year / 3 BEPRNRE=RRalHE ABIGFERH/ 2
total assets BE
4. Return on equity = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year / 4. A B3R R = KRB EE AR TG/
shareholders’ equity RAEnE
5. Gearing ratio = Interest-bearing borrowings / shareholders’ equity 5. BEABLE=-TEEE/RFER
6. Inventory turnover days = Inventory balance / cost of sales for the year x number of 6. FERBAB=TFERENR/ FEEEKIXFE
days for the year KE
7. Trade receivables turnover days = Trade receivables / revenue for the year x number 7. BoRERFIBERAERYE=EF5ENBFIB/FE
of days for the year WA X FEREL
8. Trade payables turnover days = Trade payables / cost of sales for the year x number 8. BIRENFREBERB-EHRNFE/FE

of days for the year

HERAXFERE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Runway Global
Holdings Company Limited, | am delighted to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group” or “Runway Global”) for the year ended 31
December 2015.

TRANSFER OF LISTING

The Group successfully transferred listing from the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) to the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 1 June 2015 (the “Transfer of
Listing”). The Board believes that the Transfer of Listing will enhance
the profile of the Group and increase the trading liquidity of the shares
of the Company. The Board considers that the Transfer of Listing will be
beneficial to the future growth and business development of the Group
as well as its financing flexibility.

GROUP’S PERFORMANCE

Year 2015 was challenging and volatile. China’s economic growth
continues to experience downward pressure. The GDP growth rate
moderated to 6.9% for 2015, the slowest growth rate in the recent
decade. On the other hand, despite there was steady economy
recovery in the first half of 2015, the tumble in global capital market in
the second half of 2015 coupled with the raise of interest rate of US in
December 2015 resulted in the global economic recovery being slower
than expected in 2015. These affected the business confidence in
global trade environment. All of these have created a very tough market
environment for our customers and us, and the market sentiment has
further deteriorated since August 2015.

The Group’s revenue slightly decreased from approximately
HK$379,715,000 in year 2014 to HK$371,725,000 in year 2015,
representing decline of approximately 2.1%. The profit attributable
to the owners of the Company decreased from approximately
HK$25,679,000 in year 2014 to approximately HK$15,732,000 in year
2015, representing a decrease of approximately 38.7%. The decrease
in profit attributable to the owners of the Company is mainly attributable
to (i) the significant increase in selling and distribution expenses as own
brand operation expanded in the year; and (i) increase in administrative
expenses due to increase in salary expenses and legal and professional
fees arisen from the Transfer of Listing.

RAAEBRREHRHEZERERRAEES
([E=2g]) MAZBARAREWMBER
B (et [N E ] =X [ RIRER ) BE—F
—AFTZ A=+ BIFENEERRS
ES

BAR L™

REER T —HFRNA—HRYARIER
(TRIZR)) BEBEEBAXHMERRDA
(T2 pr)) ERE™M ([BRET)) - B
SHE  BRETHBEGEAKRETLRMES
RARROEZRBIE - EFERE - BiR
LEHHBEMRARENRIEREEHER
ARERMERENE -

AEENFRR
—E-RFFEFEME RS o PR
WRBETMRTTEN - —T—AF GDPiE
RERIEEZ6.9% @ 2L THERNFIBLE -
B—FH BE_Z-RAELIEKESS
B BT —AFTEE2HREATED
BMEERR-_Z-RFE+_ANE %
TR -RAFEREEERERTES - 23E
SERENERELCEANRZIFE - FilfE
A=EHRFERMERGHEEENTISR
B ohmERsaAAa_E-hEN\ALRFE—F
=i .

AEBWRABH -_ZT—TOEFEEY
379,715,000 B LM TS E T —AFF
€ #9371,725,0007 7T * IR 1R £492.1% ° 7&K
NEHEE ANEERNE —ZE-NFFEL
25,679,000 8B TR A ETE—HFFELN
15,732,00078 7T * JRIE#138.7% ° AN E)
EANEIESENRIEESHRNOAFEES
MR EBERS HE Lo R RN
K () AR F MM - ARER EEA
B EE N BB R S| BT I -
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PRIVATE LABEL PRODUCTS

Private label products continued to be the core business of the Group,
contributing to 78.1% (2014: 86.0%) of the total revenue of the
Group for the year. Revenue from private label products decreased
by approximately 11.1% to approximately HK$290,311,000 (2014:
HK$326,680,000) while gross profit also decreased by 15.1% to
approximately HK$65,041,000 (2014: HK$76,647,000).

OWN BRAND PRODUCTS

Despite amidst market challenges, there was robust performances
from own brand operation and own brand products remains an
important driver of our business growth. Own brand products
accounted for 21.9% (2014: 14.0%) of the total revenue of the Group
for the year. The revenue as well as the gross profit from own brand
products increased substantially in 2015. For the year 2015, revenue
from own brand products increased by approximately 53.5% to
approximately HK$81,414,000 (2014: HK$53,035,000) while gross
profit also increased by 59.3% to approximately HK$27,778,000 (2014:
HK$17,440,000).

NEW BUSINESS

We conducted a preliminary study regarding developing a new
business segment, namely, health products business (the “New
Business”) during the year. We are still in the process in determining
whether it is in the interest of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole to commence any of the New Business, and if so, the specific
business models, strategies and timetable for doing so. Should there
be any decision by the Board in relation to the above, we will make
further announcement(s) as and when appropriate.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Stepping into 2016, the global economy will remain challenging.
Gloomy global economic outlook will continue to have negative impact
on consumer confidence as well as consumer market. On the other
hand, despite the expected China’s GDP growth rate will slow down
but it is relatively strong compared to other economy of developed
countries. The labour costs in China has been increasing over the years
at relatively rapid rates. We expect this increasing trend will continue.

Chairman’s Statement EE®REZE

BEIREm
MREMDAAEENZLOEL  (k
AEBARFEBWATEA%( =T — Y
F :86.0%) ° Bh R E m &9 W AR 2 &Y
11.1% £ #290,311,000/% 7T ( = & — Y
% : 326,680,000 T) © T E F I5 B
15.1% = #765,041,000/8 7L (= Z — PO 4F :
76,647,000787T) °

BEER

BREEBRMSLE - BB REEBDAES
BRI BEREERDNASERERN
B2 - RAFEEBREEREASE
BB A21.9% (ZF—MF : 14.0%) ° B

B R=ZT—AFFE  BEREERD
U A D149 53.5% Z=4981,414,0008 7T (=
T — P4 1 53,085,000/87T) ¢ 1M EF I
£59.3%ZE#927,778,0008 7T (== — P04 :
17,440,000 7T) °

EES S
BAEARF ABLFR ES D B—IFEEm
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B o BEXRMEREEA S BEELHERE D
MHEMSEREEZE - m—HE &%
JERH B GDP IR R XS iaE - ERE %
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We will follow our direction over the past few years and continue to
invest in own brand operation by participating in more trade fairs and
fashion shows. Although facing market challenges and uncertainties,
we are confident we will continue to deliver satisfactory results and
remain competiveness in the market. More importantly, we will
progressively expand our business to capture the growing demand for
our own brand products from online shoppers.

APPRECIATION

| would like to thank all the shareholders, customers and business
partners for their trust in, understanding of and support for the Group
over the years. Our response to the considerable challenges which
the Group has faced over the last year reflects the strong leadership
of the Group’s management team and the continuous efforts of all
of those at Runway Global, who are working together to ensure the
ongoing success of the Group. With a focused senior management
and professional team, we will continue to explore new business
opportunities in the challenging year ahead and strive for the best
returns for our shareholders.

Hubert Tien
Chairman
22 March 2016
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EENEREREREFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hubert TIEN, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director
(the “Director”) on 19 June 2013. Mr. Tien is one of the founders of the
Group and the chairman of the Board. He is responsible for overseeing
the in-house operations, manufacturing and sourcing activities and
devising business expansion plans of the Group. Mr. Tien has about 20
years of experience in garment trading, manufacturing and marketing
in the United States, Australia and Canada markets. Mr. Tien was a
director of Bright Cheer Company Limited (“Bright Cheer”), a textile
company, from 1992 to 2004 prior to its dissolution. He ceased to
participate in the operation of Bright Cheer in December 2000 and
founded the Group with Mr. Gozashti in 2001. Bright Cheer ceased to
carry on business afterwards and was dissolved by striking off in 2004
under section 291 of the Companies Ordinance. Mr. Tien is a brother
of Ms. Winnie Tien, a member of the senior management of the Group.

Mr. Farzad GOZASHTI, aged 50, was appointed as an executive
Director on 19 June 2013. Mr. Gozashti is one of the founders of
the Group and the chief marketing officer of the Group and the chief
executive officer of Runway Fashions, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Gozashti is responsible for overseeing the design,
sales and marketing activities and devising business expansion plans of
the Group. Mr. Gozashti graduated with a bachelor degree of science in
business administration (marketing) from San Francisco State University
in California of USA in May 1989. Mr. Gozashti has about 20 years of
experience in design and product development. Before he founded the
Group with Mr. Tien in 2001, he had also created and launched the
apparel line “BLANC NOIR” through FG Industries, Inc., which was a
private company engaged in the apparel business in the United States
then wholly owned by Mr. Gozashti and was subsequently dissolved in
2006 after transferring the “BLANC NOIR” trademark to Runway Global
Limited at a nominal consideration.

WITES
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Mr. CHEN Gang, aged 38, was appointed as an executive Director on
11 September 2015. Mr. Chen has years of experience in the banking
and finance industries. He has worked for several positions in the Bank
of Communications from November 2001 to May 2013, including
customer service manager of the Wuxi Jiangyin Baihuayuan branch
from November 2001 to October 2008, sub-branch deputy general
manager of the Wuxi Jiangyin Baihuayuan branch from October 2008
to January 2010, sub-branch deputy general manager (in-charge) of
the Wuxi Jiangyin Baihuayuan branch from January 2010 to May 2013.
He has been the general manger of Shenzhen Yufenglong Factoring
Company Limited, which is principally engaged in investment and asset
management in China, since March 2014.

Mr. QU Chengbiao, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director on 3 December 2015. Mr. Qu worked in Hubei Jianshi County
Li Da Industrial Co., Ltd., which is principally engaged in property
development and trading of building materials, from December 2010
to March 2015 where he served as the chief executive officer. He
has been the chief executive officer of Hubei Jianshi County Jun
Xing Mining Co., Ltd., which is principally engaged in processing and
sales of coal, since April 2015. Mr. Qu graduated from Zhejiang A&F
University (formerly known as, Zhejiang Agricultural College) in the
People’s Republic of China in July 1990.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TANG Tsz Kai, Kevin, aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 22 November 2013. Mr. Tang obtained a
degree of Bachelor of Science from University of Toronto in November
1998, a Bachelor of Laws from City University of Hong Kong in
November 2004 and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from City
University of Hong Kong in September 2005. He has been a barrister-
at-law in private practising in Hong Kong since 2006, specialising in
criminal practice. He was also a part-time research assistant in City
University of Hong Kong in 2002.

Mr. LAl Man Sing, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 22 November 2013.

He obtained his first degree from The London School of Economics
and Political Science, University of London, the United Kingdom in
August 1990 and earned a Master degree (long distance) in Business
Administration from University of Western Sydney, Australia in August
2007. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, also a fellow member of The Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants.

Mr. Lai worked in the accounting field for over 20 years and he took
senior financial position for listed companies. From September 2007
to March 2008, he was the financial controller of Jetup Electronic
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of J.I.C. Technology Company
Limited (now known as China Renewable Energy Investment Limited)
(stock code: 987, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange). He was responsible for producing accounting
reports, managing accounting operations and preparing budgets and
cashflow projections. Since March 2008, Mr. Lai has served as the
financial controller of Mainland Headwear Holdings Limited (stock code:
1100), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He was promoted to the position of chief financial officer in
February 2010 and has been in charge of the finance department up to
the present. In addition, Mr. Lai was an independent director of USmart
Mobile Device Inc. (previously known as ACL Semiconductors Inc.), a
company listed on the Over the Counter (OTC) markets in the United
States with stock code UMDI, from December 2010 to August 2013,
during which he also acted as the chairman of its audit committee.
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Mr. CHAN Kin Sang, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 October 2015. Mr. Chan is the sole proprietor
of Messrs. Peter K.S. Chan & Co., Solicitors and Notaries and a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in laws in 1979 and
has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong since 1982. In addition,
he was also admitted as a Notary Public in 1997 and was appointed as
a China-appointed Attesting Officer in 2000.

Mr. Chan now acts as independent non-executive director in a number
of Hong Kong and overseas listed companies including China Taifeng
Beddings Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 873), China Precious Metal
Resources Holdings Co., Limited (Stock Code: 1194), Tianjin TEDA
Biomedical Engineering Company Limited (Stock Code: 8189), Tianhe
Chemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 1619) and China Fortune
Financial Group Limited (Stock Code: 290), which are all listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”); and
Luxking Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: L34) which is listed on
the Singapore Exchange (“SGX”). Mr. Chan also acts as non-executive
director of Combest Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8190) which is
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange
and Pan Hong Property Group Limited (Stock Code: P36) which is
listed on the SGX.

Ms. LUO Dan, aged 24, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 October 2015. Ms. Luo is an analyst in the
Investment Bank Department of China Merchants Securities. Ms Luo
graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree in accounting from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law in 2013 and a Master of Arts degree
in comparative business economics from University College London in
2014. Ms. Luo has experiences in the auditing industry and banking
industry. She was previously an intern in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
CPA Limited and Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Winnie TIEN, aged 45, is the chief administration officer and head
of quality control of the Group principally responsible for overseeing
the Group’s administrative matters and quality control. Ms. Tien joined
the Group on 8 October 2001. Ms. Tien completed a professional
diploma course in human resource management (PRC) organised
by the Hong Kong Productivity Council in March 2009. Ms. Tien has
been participating in the management of the Group’s overall operation
for over 10 years. She has been primarily responsible for the Group’s
supervision, quality control, administration and management. Ms. Tien
is a sister of Mr. Tien, an executive Director.

Mr. CHAN Ka Yu, aged 36, is the chief financial officer of the Group
and company secretary of the Company and Runway Global limited, an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chan joined the
Group in late June 2013. He is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting and company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr.
Chan graduated with a bachelor of commerce in accounting from the
Hong Kong Shue Yan University in October 2009. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

From September 2010 to April 2012, Mr. Chan was employed as a
senior accountant of JBPB &Company (“JBPB”) and his last position
was senior associate at BDO Limited (“BDO”) (due to merger of
business between JBPB and BDO). From May 2012 to April 2013,
he worked as an investor relations officer for Fantasia Group (China)
Company Limited, a subsidiary of Fantasia Holdings Group Co.,
Limited (stock code: 1777), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

SREEE

HEEat 455 AREBEITBARERSD
BERNFE FTEAEEEALBITHSE
BRREERTE - BXITR=22Z—F+
ANBMBEAEE HZIRZZTHE=
RIEE2RBEBEENREREBRNBEAAD
BREBEERRE AL L2HALH
BELETETFBR10F  FEEHELX
SEMER - REER - TBRERERIE-
AT ARITEEHILEZ I

MEFRE 365 RASBEPFRER
ARR R HRRBRAR (ARRZHEE
2EMBRR) 2 ARME - REER
—=FRNAERNALREE - FEEEEAE
EMBRBERAFAMEREE - RFTN

F+A - REEEERETEHC AR - BE
BIERMBELEN - WATB K

NZZ—ZTFNAE_T——FWA KL
ERERERET ((HAD) EBEREs
B - BB AT B AR A EER TS
MEBAER AR ([MEER]) URBER
ﬁjﬁﬁiﬁﬁ¥%Aﬁ>2£maﬁ%

T —FRAER-T-ZFNAHME

182 & 1 ﬁi&h%lﬁ@ 7 (R
S8 1777 - HRMDAREERFTER L) BB
AREHEFEE (FE) ARAGRMIEES
REREL -

13



14

Runway Global Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management &% k&R & 12 BB E15

Mr. David BLITZ, aged 47, is the Group’s head of sales and
marketing for the United States. Mr. Blitz joined the Group in April
2006. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the Group’s sales and
marketing activities in the US market and in particular, establishing and
maintaining customer relationship. Mr. David Blitz has accumulated
about 20 years of experience in the fashion industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. David Blitz worked in G-Il Apparel Group from June 1992
to January 1997. He worked in Amerex Group LLC, an international
apparel company, from January 1997 to July 2006. Mr. David Blitz
graduated from the University of South Florida with a Bachelor Degree
of Science (Business Administration).

Ms. LI Yinzhen, aged 47, is the head of Jiaxing Runway Global
Garment Limited (“Runway Jiaxing”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, principally responsible for overall
management of the manufacturing operation of Runway Jiaxing. Ms. Li
has more than 12 years of experience in apparel manufacturing in the
PRC. Before Ms. Li joined the Group in April 2006, she worked at Sky
Voice International Company Limited, an apparel manufacturer, from
2000 to 2005.

Ms. MA Wing Sze, aged 46, is the Group’s assistant merchandising
manager principally responsible for merchandising. Ms. Ma joined the
Group on 22 October 2001. Ms. Ma has over 20 years of experience
in merchandising and marketing in the apparel industry. Prior to joining
of the Group, Ms. Ma worked as a merchandiser from 1991 to 2001
for companies including Atex Garments Limited and Rena Gabriel HK
Limited.

Ms. Sue McBRIDE, aged 39, is the Group’s senior designer. Ms.
McBride joined the Group in July 2008. She is primarily responsible for
the design and development of different types of apparel products of
the Group. Ms. McBride has about 11 years of experience in design
of garment. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. McBride was employed by
Guess? Manufacturing Inc. from August 2002 to May 2008 and she
held the full-time position of senior designer.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in designing, manufacturing and
selling apparel with a focus on women’s fashion outerwear such as
coats and jackets, dresses, activewear, pants and jeans.

The Group’s turnover is principally derived from the sales of apparel
products. The Group’s products can be classified into two categories,
namely, private label products and own brand products. Private label
products are those designed and manufactured under the private
labels owned or specified by the Group’s customers, while own brand
products are those designed and manufactured under the Group’s
proprietary labels.

The Group’s revenue slightly decreased from approximately
HK$379,715,000 in year 2014 to HK$371,725,000 in year 2015,
representing decline of approximately 2.1%. The profit attributable
to the owners of the Company decreased from approximately
HK$25,679,000 in year 2014 to approximately HK$15,732,000 in year
2015, representing a decrease of approximately 38.7%. The decrease
in profit attributable to the owners of the Company is mainly attributable
to (i) the significant increase in selling and distribution expenses as own
brand operation expanded in the year; and (i) increase in administrative
expenses due to increase in salary expenses and legal and professional
fees arisen from the Transfer of Listing.

PRIVATE LABEL PRODUCTS

Private label products continued to be the core business of the Group,
contributing to 78.1% (2014: 86.0%) of the total revenue of the
Group for the year. Revenue from private label products decreased
by approximately 11.1% to approximately HK$290,311,000 (2014:
HK$326,680,000) while gross profit also decreased by 15.1% to
approximately HK$65,041,000 (2014: HK$76,647,000).
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OWN BRAND PRODUCTS

Despite amidst market challenges, there was robust performances
from own brand operation and own brand products remains an
important driver of our business growth. Own brand products
accounted for 21.9% (2014: 14.0%) of the total revenue of the Group
for the year. The revenue as well as the gross profit from own brand
products increased substantially in 2015. For the year 2015, revenue
from own brand products increased by approximately 53.5% to
approximately HK$81,414,000 (2014: HK$53,035,000) while gross
profit also increased by 59.3% to approximately HK$27,778,000 (2014:
HK$17,440,000).

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales decreased by approximately 2.4%, from
approximately HK$285,628,000 to approximately HK$278,906,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2015. The decrease in cost of sales was
mainly attributable to decrease in purchase of materials for the year,
as the revenue slightly decreased in year 2015. On the other hand,
decrease in price of materials and finished products purchased from
our suppliers as we offered more favourable trade terms to them, such
as shorter credit period.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The gross profit decreased by approximately HK$1,268,000 or 1.3%
and the gross profit margin increased from approximately 24.8% to
25.0% for the year ended 31 December 2015. The decrease in gross
profit was primarily attributable to the decrease in revenue in the year.
The Group’s turnover is derived from the sales of private label products
and own brand products, and the gross profit and gross profit margin
of the Group were primarily affected by the mix of those of private label
products and own brand products. The slight increase in the gross
profit margin from 24.8% in year 2014 to 25.0% in year 2015 was
primarily attributable to higher proportion of revenue generated from
own brand products, which accounted for 21.9% (2014: 14.0%) of
total revenue, which has higher gross profit margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &% & &f3m & 2 1

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains decreased by approximately HK$396,000 or
39.9%, from approximately HK$993,000 to approximately HK$597,000
for the year ended 31 December 2015, which was primarily attributable
to the decrease in sample and accessories income by approximately
HK399,000.

CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group did not have any revenue generated from changes in
fair value of derivative financial instruments for the year ended 31
December 2015, compared to loss from changes in fair value of
derivative financial instruments of approximately HK$242,000 recorded
in 2014. This was because the 2 structured foreign exchange forward
contracts that were brought forward from 2014 expired in 2015,
and the Group did not enter into any new foreign exchange forward
contract in 2015.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses mainly consist of (i) transportation
costs for delivery of the products; (ii) staff cost for our sales
representative; (i) import duty; and (iv) rental costs of our showroom.
The selling and distribution expenses incurred in the reporting
period were approximately HK$33,967,000 (2014: HK$26,839,000),
representing an increase of approximately HK$7,128,000 or 26.6% on
year to year basis. The increase in selling and distribution expenses was
primarily attributable to (i) an increase of approximately HK$4,244,000
import duty; (i) an increase of approximately HK$2,085,000 in staff
cost for our sales representative; and (jii) an increase of approximately
HK$674,000 transportation costs for delivery of the products, all were
driven mainly by the rise in revenue of own brand products in the year.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) staff costs; (ii) rental
expenses; (i) bank charges; and (iv) legal and professional expenses.
The administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2015 were HK$39,905,000 (2014: HK$36,137,000), increased by
approximately 10.4% or HK$3,768,000. The increase in administrative
expenses was mainly due to (i) an increase of approximately
HK$2,650,000 in staff cost; and (i) incurring non-recurring professional
expenses of approximately HK$1,252,000 for the Transfer of Listing.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs represent interest expenses on the Group’s bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases. The finance costs
decreased by approximately 46.4% or HK$137,000 from approximately
HK$295,000 in 2014 to approximately HK$158,000 in 2015, primarily
due to decrease in utilisation of banking facilities because the Group
has sufficient liquidity throughout 2015.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company decreased
from approximately HK$25,679,000 in year 2014 to approximately
HK$15,732,000 in year 2015, representing a decrease of
approximately 38.7%. The decrease in profit attributable to the owners
of the Company is mainly due to (i) significant increase in selling and
distribution expenses as own brand operation expanded in the year; (i)
increase in administrative expenses due to increase in salary expenses
and legal and professional fees arises from the Transfer of Listing.
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INVENTORIES

The following table set out a summary of the Group’s inventory
balances as at respective financial position dates below:

Management Discussion and Analysis &% & &f3m & 2 1

FE

TREFIAREEN THZHHEAMN B BT

BESME -

As at

31 December
2015
R=-Z2—HF
+=A=+-H
HK$’000
FHET

4,266
1,730
19,152

25,148

Raw materials and consumables R R FEM
Work in progress M
Finished goods BIpK M
Inventory turnover days FEREXEH

33

The Group’s inventories increased by approximately HK$4,971,000
or 24.6%, from approximately HK$20,177,000 as at 31 December
2014 to approximately HK$25,148,000 as at 31 December 2015, as
well as the inventory turnover days increased from 26 days as at 31
December 2014 to 33 days as at 31 December 2015, primarily due
to the increase in finished goods inventory of own brand products by
approximately HK$3,842,000 to cope with anticipated increase in sales

of own brands products in the coming year.
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The following table set out a summary of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables balances as at respective financial position dates below:

BZRUHRERERRE
TREFAEER THEHHHRREAHE
PIEHE R YRR

As at As at

KA ETST o STl 31 December

2015 2014

RoZ—HF [Nl

TZA=1+—H ey =

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#ExT T

Trade receivables = E e 64,379 59,790
Bills receivable FEE 6,822 3,391
71,201 63,181

Trade receivables turnover days Z 5 REWGRIARE X H 63 57

The Group’s trade and bills receivables increased by approximately
HK$8,020,000 or 12.7% from approximately HK$63,181,000 as at 31
December 2014 to approximately HK$71,201,000 as at 31 December
2015, as well as trade receivables turnover days increased from 57
days as at 31 December 2014 to 63 days as at 31 December 2015.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables decreased
by approximately HK$11,067,000 or 28.9% from approximately
HK$38,346,000 as at 31 December 2014 to approximately
HK$27,279,000 as at 31 December 2015, primarily due to we placed
less trade deposits to our suppliers to purchase raw materials and
finished goods.
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TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The following table set out a summary of the Group’s trade and bills
payables balances as at respective financial position dates below:

BEZRARERENRE
TREBIAKER THIE MR B 20
SR HOR R RIS

Trade payables E SRR
Bills payable JERTRIE

Trade payables turnover days H 5 M IR AE R

As at As at

RIW LTS 31 December
2015 2014
R-Z—HF [gNetesgiiled
FToA=1+—H pyee=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

35,659 52,451

14,919 15,340

50,578 67,791

47 67

The Group’s trade and bills payables decreased by approximately
HK$17,213,000 or 25.4% from approximately HK$67,791,000 as at 31
December 2014 to approximately HK$50,578,000 as at 31 December
2015, as well as trade payables turnover days decreased from 67
days as at 31 December 2014 to 47 days as at 31 December 2015,
primarily due to our offering of more favourable trade terms, such as
shorter payment day, to our suppliers in order to obtain lower price for
materials and finished goods from our suppliers.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During 2015, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity position,
with working capital financed by both internal resources and bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2015, pledged bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$62,493,000
(2014: HK$69,663,000). Total interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 was approximately HK$879,000
(2014: HK$3,131,000), of which approximately HK$242,000 (2014:
HK$823,000) would be repayable within one year and all the remaining
interest-bearing borrowings of approximately HK$637,000 (2014:
HK$2,308,000) would be repayable after one year. The current ratio of
the Group was approximately 2.79 (2014: 2.22).
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GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total interest-bearing
borrowings over total equity, was approximately 0.6% as at 31
December 2015 (2014: 2.6 %).

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To
manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2015.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group derives the majority of its revenue in US$ while substantial
portion of our costs are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”).
Appreciation of RMB against US$ will therefore directly decrease the
profit margin of the Group if the Group is unable to increase the selling
prices of its products accordingly. If the Group increases the selling
prices of its products as a result of the appreciation of RMB, it may
in turn affect the Group’s competitiveness against other competitors.
To the extent that the Company needs to convert future financing into
RMB for the Group’s operations, appreciation of the RMB against
the relevant foreign currencies would have an adverse effect on the
purchasing power of the RMB amount that the Company would receive
from the conversion.

The exchange rates between RMB and US$ are subject to changes in
the PRC Government’s policies and international political and economic
conditions.
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In the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Group did not
have any revenue generated from changes in fair value of derivative
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December 2015, compared
to loss from change in fair value of derivative financial instruments of
approximately HK$242,000 recorded in 2014. The 2 structured foreign
exchange forward contracts that were brought forward from 2014
expired in 2015, and the Group did not enter into any new foreign
exchange forward contract in 2015.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitment (2014: nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 402 employees
(2014: 399 employees). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) were approximately HK$56,896,000, as compared to
approximately HK$55,049,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Remuneration is determined with reference to market norms as well as
individual employees’ performance, qualification and experience.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed under “Comparison of Business Objectives with
Actual Business Progress” in this announcement, there was no specific
plan for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December
2015.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors did not recommend any payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM PLACING

On 3 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed on the
GEM by way of placing. The net proceeds from the placing were
approximately HK$35,732,000. The future plans and prospects as
stated in the prospectus of the Company dated 27 November 2013
(the “Prospectus”) were formulated based on the best estimation of
the future market conditions at the time of preparing the Prospectus.
The Directors are mindful of the financial performance of the Group
in engaging actual costs and capital expenditure. The proceeds were
conservatively applied regard to ongoing market conditions.
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH
ACTUAL BESINESS PROGRESS

Further developing the own brand
products operation

E—TERBEREERED

Business objectives for the
period from 20 November
2013 (the “Latest Practicable
Date”) to 31 December 2015
as stated in the Prospectus
BRERFEH-Z—=F
+—A=+H (K&7ATEH]
E-F-RFtT=-A=1+—H
WEKB R

Continue to expand the marketing
team with about 2 to 3 staff to
visit, make presentations to, and
develop relationship with existing
and potential customers of the
Group’s own brand products
HRAME=FET  BEERT
LB - IRASE e B M
RERZBELEERF - XA
HIEHER L ERBE

Continue to participate in more
trade fairs and fashion shows

to increase the exposure of the
brands owned by the Group
BE2ETLEFREGRNE
& DRREASEEE MM
ZE

Hold fashion show(s) in Canada
and the United States to further
increase exposure of the Group’s
products to customers
RIMEARRERRITRER &
BERPEBAREZERD

ﬁi’% BRHEEREBERNY

Actual business progress up
to 31 December 2015
EE=F-HFt=A=+-8
NEREBER

In 2015, we recruited one
experienced and high caliber
sales and marketing staff, as well
as contracted with two external
experienced sales representatives
to promote the our own brand
products to existing and potential
customers

RZZE—RHF  BFEET %
EREEERRNAAENEHEA

8 WHREIM SRS R
ERIEFTLH - WARBEREER
FEEBAMERERD

During the year, we participated
more than 10 trade fairs and
fashion shows around the

world, including North America,
Europe and Asia, to promote our
brands awareness. We spent
approximately HK$1,357,000 in
2015 participating in trade fairs
and fashion shows to increase
the exposure of our brands in the
apparel industry

FA - BPERIRSNBER TS
EiHg MRER - BFEILE -
BN K g - DARFH AR AR
€ BPIR_Z—RFHLBLY
1,357,000 # 7L 2 IR tH & KB
KR - DR R IR R A
ZE
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Business objectives for the
period from 20 November
2013 (the “Latest Practicable
Date”) to 31 December 2015
as stated in the Prospectus
BRERMEH-B—=F
+—A=+8 (R&7TEH]
B2-E-RAF+=ZA=+—H
WK B R

Launch the online products
demonstration and ordering
platform to facilitate customers
to get access to the updated
Group's products and placing
orders

HEHE ERRELIETS
FER PR B SHEm &
THEETE

Increase own brand products
inventories in preparation for
increase in demand from new
and existing customers
ENEERMERZFE @ B
ERIRBEEP 2 FK T
]

Actual business progress up
to 31 December 2015
BEEZ-ZE-AF+=ZA=+—H
NEREBER

We started our online sales
platform in June 2015 and retail
customers can get access to the
updated Group’s products and
placing orders
BPR—ZE—RFNAREAE L
HETE  TEEFATHRAS
B SFEm & T ERE

To cope with anticipated increase
in sales of own brands products
in the coming year, we increased
our own brand inventories by
approximately HK$3,842,000 as
at 31 December 2015, compared
to own brand inventories as at 31
December 2014
REMNKRFIHE BB mEERD
FEEEF - BT —pF+—
RA=+—HBHBAmERFEL
B RZE—AF+ZA=1+—
BEMGINEEREFELD
3,842,0008 7T
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Enhancing the Group's
manufacturing facilities
R ANER BB A EE R

Business objectives for the
period from 20 November
2013 (the “Latest Practicable
Date”) to 31 December 2015
as stated in the Prospectus
BRERMEH-B—=F
+—A=+8 (R&7TEH]
B2-E-RAF+=ZA=+—H
MEKBE

Purchase new production
equipment and machinery to
enhance the production efficiency
and capacity (mainly including
the installation of 2 sets of new
intelligent automated apparel
products hanging systems, as
well as approximately 20 sets

of additional new machineries
including computerized over-
lock machines, automated
computerised cutting machines,
automated tacking machines,
automated button-attaching
machines, paper pattern printing
and cutting equipment, and
computerised sketching and
plotting equipment, at a total
investment cost of approximately
HK$4.5 million and with a target
to reduce production time by

a further 10% and to increase
production capacity by a further
20%)
BEMEERE NS - oL
ERERER (FEBRFTE
BEMEEEHXKRERDHE
FLAREEINN 20 6 2FTIERS - B
FEERMEEETE  EHam
K - BBESK - 5357
R - RRENRBTHGR B N B
BRRBERE  BRERELY
A5B&EBT  BERERAKE
7E 5y FRVE — P8R 10% M A EE B
H#E— LN 20%)

Actual business progress up
to 31 December 2015
BEEZ-ZE-AF+=ZA=+—H
NEREBER

We purchased additional 10 sets
of production equipment and
machineries in 2015 to enhance
the production capacity and
efficiency
BMER S —AFHEINEE 10
EAERE RN - DURRERE
P ES



BRI IR AR A A
“T-REEH

Further strengthening the Group's
design capability
H— IR AR E R

Management Discussion and Analysis &% & & & & 5 1

Business objectives for the
period from 20 November
2013 (the “Latest Practicable
Date”) to 31 December 2015
as stated in the Prospectus
BRERMEH-B—=F
+—A=+8 (R&7TEH]
B2-E-RAF+=ZA=+—H
MEKBE

Evaluate the effectiveness and
efficiency of the new facilities

AHERTRR S BB AR R

Continue to expand and
strengthen the design team by
recruit additional 2 to 3 staff
HEME=FET  BEERTR
bR E R

Continue to develop and create
more fashion apparel samples
for presentation to existing and
potential customers
BB R BIEE ZRERIR -
NERRTEREREERP

Launch the database platform
with comprehensive and updated
data and information of fabric,
accessories, fashion samples,
fashion design photos and other
historical information related to
fashion apparel
HHEBETS -  EHEREZ
BB NRER - REEL - &
7~ RRERERIR - RERRFTRA R
HipGRR R 2 ELER

Actual business progress up
to 31 December 2015
BEE-_Z—HF+-H=+—H
NEREBER

We are now evaluating the
effectiveness and efficiency of the
facilities on a on-going basis

B EERSSET R ERRE 2K
B B

We recruited an additional
staff in design team in 2015 to
strengthen the design team. We
are in the progress of recruiting
more experienced and high
caliber design personnel
ﬁﬁ%:ifﬁiﬁwﬁlﬁﬁ
—HEBTI - LAIRRRETEEK -
ﬁﬁEF% ZERRBL TR
BRRET AT

We developed many fashion
apparel samples in 2015 for
presentation to customers
BN —_ZE-—RFEERERE
MEERAEFER

We have been developing a
database system since 2014.
The database includes the
information of fabric, accessories,
fashion samples, fashion design
photos, which facilitates design
team to enhance its capability
and efficiency

BB ZT—POF e —E2
BEZRR - ZBIEEREmE
#iH) -~ RERARAR - RERERETIR Y
BE - BBRRETEB IR KT &

2k
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USE OF PROCEEDS

During the period from the Latest Practicable Date as defined in the
Prospectus to 31 December 2015, the net proceeds from Placing were
applied as follows:

FrERIBERAE

RN ¢

Planned use of
proceeds as
stated in the

HREAATAR (ERRARER) E=F
—hF+A=t+—R EEMEIIETHE

Actual use of

Prospectus from proceeds from
the Latest the Latest
Practicable Practicable
Date to Date to
31 December 31 December
2015 2015
BRER
it S SR8 FR8RIE
REZRAITAYE RERAITED
Z-Z-1F E-T-RF
+=ZA=t—-H +=A=t+-H
MERERZ HERAZ
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Further developing the Group’s own brand E—SEEASEEERBERES
products operation 8,000 12,198
Enhancing the Group’s manufacturing facilities 2 B 7N & B ¢ A A= 35 46 16,500 620
Further strengthening the Group’s design #— I A EE A RRETKE
capability 7,500 4,538

The business objectives, future plans and planned use of proceeds
as stated in the Prospectus were based on the best estimation and
assumption of future market conditions made by the Group at the time
of preparing the Prospectus while the proceeds were applied based on
the actual development of the Group's business and the industry.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout
the year. The Board of the Company will keep reviewing and updating
such practices from time to time to ensure compliance with legal and
commercial standards.

Throughout the year, the Company complied with the CG Code with
the exception from the deviation from the code provisions A.1.8 as
explained below:

Under the code provision A.1.8, the Company should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its
directors. No insurance cover has been arranged for directors up to the
date of this report since the directors take the view that the Company
shall support directors arising from corporate activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Group. At the same time, it also
has the duty to enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance
practices of the Group. Under the Board, there are four committees,
namely audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination
committee and corporate governance committee. All these committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of the
senior management.
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THE BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently comprises eight Directors and their respective
roles are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Hubert Tien (Chairman)
Farzad Gozashti

Chen Gang

Qu Chengbiao

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin
Lai Man Sing

Chan Kin Sang
Luo Dan

Biographies of all directors are listed in Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management set out on pages 9 to 14.

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising the
management of the business affairs and the overall performance of
the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values and standards and
ensures that the requisite financial and human resources support are in
place for the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions performed
by the Board include but not limited to formulating the Group’s
business strategies, reviewing the Group’s financial performance
and results, deciding all significant financial and operational issues
and monitoring; reviewing the Group’s internal control system and
corporate governance; and all other functions reserved to the Board
under the Company’s articles of association. In addition, the Board
delegates to the Group’s management certain functions include the
implementation of general daily operation, strategies approved by
the Board, the implementation of internal control procedures and
ensuring of compliance with relevant requirements and other rules and
regulations. The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. All the Directors
carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors (the “INEDs”) has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a period of three years. All Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are eligible
for election in accordance with the Articles of Association. A new
Director is subject to re-election by the shareholders at the first general
meeting after his or her appointment in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third shall retire from the office and being eligible offer
themselves for re-election provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Hubert Tien, the Chairman, has provided leadership for the Board
and ensured that the Board works effectively and that all important
issues are discussed in a timely manner. Mr. Farzad Gozashti, the
Executive Director and chief marketing officer of the Group, manage
the Company’s day-to-day businesses and implement major strategies
and policies of the Company. The responsibilities of the Chairman and
the chief marketing officer are clearly set out in their respective letters
of appointment. The positions of the Chairman and the chief marketing
officer are held by separate individuals so as to maintain an effective
segregation of duties.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the
overall strategies and policies of the Company. Additional meetings
are held when significant events or important issues are required to be
discussed and resolved.

The Company held 7 board meetings and 1 annual general meeting
(“AGM”) throughout the year.
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The attendance records of individual Director are set out as follows:

ERgRRLFRBEIEINT

Number of board
meetings attended/
eligible to attend

Number of
AGM attended/
eligible to attend

EEg REAEF
eRHE RedE/
EERHERE EEREERY
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
Hubert Tien (Chairman) HEES () 7/7 11
Farzad Gozashti Farzad Gozashti 1/7 0/1
Chen Gang (appointed on bR (R=F—RF

11 September 2015) NA+—BEEZE) 2/2 0/0
Qu Chengbiao (appointed on A% (R - — R

3 December 2015) +-A=HEZT) 0/0 0/0
INDEPENDENT

NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS BAFHTES
Tang Shu Pui, Simon BEE (W= —1F

(resigned on +-A=HEE)

3 December 2015) 4/6 1/1
Tang Tsz Kali, Kevin BF1e 5/7 11
Lai Man Sing BYE 5/7 1/1
Chan Kin Sang (appointed on &4 (R=—Z—HF

5 October 2015) +ARBEZRT) 0/1 0/0
Luo Dan (appointed on Y (R —h%F

5 October 2015) +ARBEZT) 1/1 0/0

AUDIT COMMITTEE ERZEES

EFeON - E—=F+—A=-+=ZHKZ
EZEZEG BERZESRNEE=-R2B
FNITES  MIBRNESRE BTREER
PREEZERE - BNELE BERZESE
& e AEBHE—_T—RAF+=-_A=1+—H
IFFEMEERTFEEECHEREE SR
BEMARSRREHER RES -

The Board established the audit committee on 22 November 2013.
The audit committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai Man Sing, Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin
and Mr. Chan Kin Sang. Mr. Lai Man Sing is the chairman of the audit
committee. The audited annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 have been reviewed by the audit committee
members who have provided advice and comments thereon.
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The main duties of the audit committee include, among others:

- monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual, quarterly and interim financial reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments and accounting policies
contained in them;

- satisfying themselves as to the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and as to
the adequacy of the external and internal audits;

- responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor;

- reporting the finding and recommendations to the Board on a
regular basis

Throughout the year, three audit committee meetings were held to
review and discuss with the management of the Company and the
external auditors the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, as well as risk management and internal controls and
other financial reporting matters. The attendance records of individual
committee members are set out below:

Number of meeting
attended/eligible to attend

Lai Man Sing 3/3
Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin 3/3
Tang Shu Pui, Simon

(resigned on 3 December 2015) 3/3
Chan Kin Sang

(appointed on 3 December 2015) 0/0

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the remuneration committee on 22 November
2013. The remuneration committee currently consists of one Executive
Director, namely Mr. Hubert Tien, and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Kin Sang, Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin and Mr.
Lai Man Sing. Mr. Chan Kin Sang is the chairman of the remuneration
committee.
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The main duties of the remuneration committee include, among others:

- formulating remuneration policy for approval by the Board,
which shall take into consideration factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment, employment
conditions, and responsibilities, and individual performance of the
directors, senior management, and the general staff;

- ensuring none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

Throughout the year, one meeting of the remuneration committee
was held to, amongst others, review and approve the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management of the Company.
The attendance records of individual committee members are as
follows:

Number of meeting
attended/eligible to attend

Chan Kin Sang

(appointed on 3 December 2015) 0/0
Tang Shu Pui, Simon

(resigned on 3 December 2015) 11
Hubert Tien i7al
Lai Man Sing 11
Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin 1/1
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the nomination committee on 22 November
2013. The nomination committee currently consists of two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hubert Tien and Mr. Chen Gang, and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai Man Sing, Mr.
Chan Kin Sang, and Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin. Mr. Lai Man Sing is the
chairman of the nomination committee.

The main duties of the nomination committee include, among others:
- reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;

- make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

- identify suitable and qualified individuals to become Board
members.
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Throughout the year, four meetings of the nomination committee were
held and the attendance records of individual committee members are
as follows:

Number of Meetings
attended/eligible to attend

Lai Man Sing 2/4
Hubert Tien 4/4
Chen Gang

(appointed on 11 September 2015) 2/2
Tang Shu Pui, Simon

(resigned on 3 December 2015) 1/4
Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin 1/4
Chan Kin Sang

(appointed on 5 October 2015) 0/1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Board established the nomination committee on 22 November
2013. The corporate governance committee currently consists of one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Hubert Tien, three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin, Mr. Lai Man
Sing and Mr. Chan Kin Sang, and the Company Secretary, namely,
Chan Ka Yu. Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin is the chairman of the corporate
governance committee.

The main duties of the corporate governance committee include,
among others:

- develop and review Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the board;

- review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

- review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

- review the Group’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

2FERTORMREREEEALENEZE

e BRI LFREINT
HiE/ EER
HESHH
RYE 2/4
HEEZ) 4/4
BRA (R=E—RE
NA+—HEZRT) 2/2
BEE (R —T—HF
+ZA=8F1T) 1/4
ISR 1/4
BRigE (W-B—AE
+ARHEZE) 0/1
TEEREZER

EFEECON T =Ft+—A=-t-HKIZ
TCRERLZEE - PXERZBSERER
—ERITES  AREBESEER=RBIIHE
MITERNHFREEE  BXERERRRE
EREARARMENRRFEL - B
RERTCEERZERLIRE -

*
N

m

AEBENIEBRAERE (P

oh

- HWERBIAEENCEERRER
FRUMNESSREEBES

- BRURERESASAEEEBMNE
R BERER

- REREEAKELEATAEREE
SR A EORE R

- BE -RIREREEREFEAN
BrsAIkeRFM (0E) &

- BUAKEEETTIREELCEER
|

35



36

Runway Global Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

Corporate Governance Report thEE e E

Throughout the year, one meeting of the corporate governance
committee was held and the attendance records of individual
committee members are as follows:

Number of Meetings
attended/eligible to attend

Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin 1/1
Hubert Tien 11
Tang Shu Pui, Simon

(resigned on 3 December 2015) 1
Lai Man Sing 11
Chan Kin Sang

(appointed on 3 December 2015) 0/0
Chan Ka Yu 11

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing
in securities of the Company by the Directors. The Company has
confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the
Directors have complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

AUDITOR REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, remuneration payable to the
auditor of the Group is approximately HK$600,000 for audit services.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Our Group highly values the importance of internal control and risk
management for the smooth running of its business. The Board is
responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk management
and internal control system in order to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the assets of the Company against unauthorised use
or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and records for
the provision of reliable financial information, and ensuring compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations.
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The Board set up an audit committee in 22 November 2013. The
audit committee is closely monitoring the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control system and report to the Board
regularly. The audit committee shall report any non-compliance issues
to the Board immediately once any non-compliance issues are noted.

The Board is of the view that the Group’s risk management and internal
control system is effective and adequate. The Board will continue
to assess the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
system by considering reviews and recommendations made by the
audit committee and senior management.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group’s results and cash flows for the year then
ended and properly prepared on going concern basis in accordance
with the applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.
The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties which may
affect the Company’s business or cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the
Company can convene an extraordinary general meeting by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company. In addition,
shareholders can raise any questions relating to published information
and latest strategic plan of the Group with the Directors. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable
to attend the meetings. Shareholders can also submit enquiries to the
management and send proposals to be put forward at shareholders’
meeting to the Board or senior management by sending e-mails to
ir@runwayglobal.com
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a high level
of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. The Company
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its shareholders and public investors.

The Company maintains various communication channels with its
shareholders and the investment public to ensure that they are kept
abreast of the Company’s latest news and development. The Company
updates its shareholders on its development, financial results and major
events through its annual, interim and quarterly reports. All published
information is promptly uploaded to the website of the Company at
www.runwayglobal.com.
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in designing, manufacturing and
trading of apparels. Details of the principal activities of the Company
and its subsidiaries are set out in note 34(a) to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
areas is set out in the note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and its
state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2015 are set out in the
financial statements on pages 50 to 124.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past five years is set out in the financial summary on
page 5 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements in this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 34(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of change in equity,
respectively in this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders, comprising share premium and
contributed surplus, amounted to approximately HK$90,091,000.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was successfully listed on 3 December 2013. The
proceeds from the Company’s issuance of 150,000,000 new shares
at the time of the listing amounted to approximately HK$35,732,000,
net of underwriting fees and other listing expenses. For further details
of the use of proceeds, please refer to the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As of the date of this
report, the net proceeds have been used as set out in Use of Proceeds
in page 28 of this annual report and are placed on short-term interest
bearing deposits with authorised financial institutions.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2015.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as
follows:

Sales

— The largest customer 27.3%
— The total of five largest customers 86.7%
Purchases

— The largest supplier 28.4%
— The total of five largest suppliers 46.6%

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2015 and up to the date of this annual report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Hubert Tien (Chairman)

Farzad Gozashti

Chen Gang (appointed on 11 September 2015)
Qu Chengbiao (appointed on 3 December 2015)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin

Lai Man Sing

Tang Shu Pui, Simon (resigned on 3 December 2015)
Chan Kin Sang (appointed on 5 October 2015)

Luo Dan (appointed on 5 October 2015)

In accordance with articles 84(1) to 85 of the Company’s articles of
association, Chen Gang, Qu Chengbiao, Lai Man Sing, Chan Kin
Sang and Luo Dan will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the annual general
meeting has entered into any service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 9 to 14 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party the year ended 31
December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or were required pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions in Shares of the Company
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Percentage of

Name Capacity/nature of interest Number of shares interests
®E B REME R#HEE BEZADHL
Mr. Hubert Tien Interest in controlled corporation (note 1) 138,000,000 shares 23.0%
HEBEZ) S RivEE s (Wi 1) 138,000,000 %

Note: Bt 5T

1. These shares are held by All Divine Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr. Hubert 1. ZZ 17 8 All Divine Limited #5758 + &% AR1H#

Tien. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hubert Tien is deemed to be interested in the
138,000,000 shares under the SFO.

BB 2 ARE o RIEEARBEIED -
FEL 9% 30 52 A6 1048 /35 138,000,000 I8R5 89
% -



F IR R AT
—T-mrER

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which he was taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which was
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or pursuant to the Model Code to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified to any Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the
particulars of the corporations or persons (other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company) which had 5% or more interests in
the Shares and the underlying Shares as recorded in the register kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in Shares of the Company
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Percentage of

Name Capacity/nature of interest Number of shares interests
®A B HERHE gk 2 4= EZEIL
All Divine Limited Beneficial owner 138,000,000 shares 23.0%
E=EBA 138,000,000 A%
Hua Zhen Beneficial owner 87,000,000 shares 14.5%
EY E=EBA 87,000,000 &
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Directors were B EXFI#EEBEEIN RZZE—HF+=A

not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members
or associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors with reference to their responsibilities, workload, the time
devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group. The Directors
may also receive options to be granted under a share option scheme.
The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme. The
details of the share option scheme are set out in the paragraph headed
“Share Option Scheme” below.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme enables the Company to grant options to
any full-time or part-time employee of the Company or any member of
the Group (the “Eligible Participant”) as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group, the Company conditionally adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 22 November 2013 since whereby
the Board are authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to
the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to subscribe for the shares
of the Company to the Eligible Participant. The Share Option Scheme
will remain effective following the Transfer of Listing subject to certain
immaterial amendments to the share option scheme and will be
implemented in full compliance with the requirements of Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules.The Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing from the listing date.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme is 60,000,000 shares, representing 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company.
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Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for shares granted
pursuant to the Scheme (the “Option”), the Eligible Participant shall
pay HK$ 1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.
The Option will be offered for acceptance for a period of 21 days from
the date on which the Option is granted. The subscription price for the
shares subject to Options will be a price determined by the Board and
notified to each participant and shall be the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the Option, which must be a day on
which trading of shares take place on the Stock Exchange (the “Trading
Day”); (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 Trading Days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the Options; and (jii) the nominal value
of a share. For the purpose of calculating the subscription price, in the
event that on the date of grant, the Company has been listed on the
Stock Exchange for less than 5 Trading Days, the placing price shall be
used as the closing price for any Trading Day falling within the period
before the Listing Date.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue from the listing date. The Company may at any time refresh such
limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in
compliance with the Listing Rules, provided that the total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes
of the Company does not exceed 30% of the shares in issue at the
time. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine
which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to
the provisions of early termination thereof. Since the adoption of the
Scheme and during the year, no share option has been granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled, and as at 31 December 2015, no share
options under the Scheme were outstanding.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected and related party transactions for the reporting
period are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report. The connected and related party transactions
are exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or has any
other conflict of interests with the Group during the year.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2015, except for the compliance adviser’s
agreement entered into between the Company and Messis Capital
Limited, the Company’s compliance adviser, on 26 November 2013,
neither the Company’s compliance adviser nor its directors, employees
or associates had any interest in the share capital of the Company or
any member of the Group (including options or rights to subscribe for
such securities) as notified by the Company’s compliance adviser.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report. The Company has maintained a sufficient public float in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 29 to
38 in this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been audited by BDO Limited, who shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited
as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By order of the Board
Runway Global Holdings Company Limited

Hubert Tien
Chairman
22 March 2016

Directors’ Report EF#HEE
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IBDO

BEE 1 +85222188288
{#H : +85228152239

Tel : +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 28152239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

EATHER11158
Fk&H2518

www.bdo.com.hk

To the Shareholders of Runway Global Holdings Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Runway
Global Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 124, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued) B #ZE MR E (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continueq)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wong Kwok Wai

Practising Certificate Number PO6047

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z—-ZF—RAF+_A=+—HILFE

Notes
s

Revenue A 7
Cost of sales SHE AR
Gross profit EF
Other income and gains EMUA R 7
Changes in fair value of derivative PTEERT AN

financial instruments NEEZE 19
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER
Administrative expenses THRAZ
Finance costs REE R AR 8
Profit before income tax RRER 188 A Es A 9
Income tax expense FriSBiRsZ i
Profit for the year attributable to RATEEA

owners of the Company ERFEERT
Other comprehensive income, RATEE AELEM

net of tax, attributable to 2EKE (BRBER)

owners of the Company
Item that may be reclassified TREZEH S ER

subsequently to profit or loss: BRWIER
Exchange loss on translation of financial BEFINETE I RE

statements of foreign operations HFE ¥ 18
Total comprehensive income for the RAREEAEBLEE

year attributable to owners of 2HEHKRGETHE

the Company
Earnings per share attributable to ARATEE AEM

owners of the Company BRER 13

Basic and diluted earnings per
share (HK cents)

BREAREERN GBI

2015
HK$’000
TR

371,725

(278,906)

92,819

597

(33,967)

(39,905)

(158)

19,386

(3,654)

15,732

(2,744)

2014
HK$'000
TAT

379,715

(285,628)

94,087

993

(242)

(26,839)

(36,137)

(295)

31,567

(5,888)

25,679

(175)

25,504

4.28
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BB

RZZE—RF+=-A=+—8H

As at 31 December 2015

Notes
Pt

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE K 14
Payments for leasehold land held for own &L TE1EE ALY

use under operating lease AE LT 15
Current assets REBEE
Inventories BB 16
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWGRIA MR R 17
Deposits, prepayments and B BERKE

other receivables H b e RIE 18
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmMIA 19
Tax recoverable AT E A
Pledged bank deposits BIIRIRITIER 20
Cash and bank balances WRE RRITET 21
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables B 5 RN RERENRE 22
Accruals, other payables and receipts TEIREM - HibER

in advance RIA R TEUWGRIA 23
Interest-bearing borrowings SEEE 24
Provision for taxation TIaRE
Net current assets REBEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities

REERRBAE

2015
HK$’000
TR

25,148
71,201

27,279

747
8,656
53,837

186,868

50,578
15,606
242
524
66,950

119,918

136,394

2014
HK$'000
TAT

16,473

2,065

18,538

20,177

63,181

38,346
129

9,835
59,828

191,496

67,791
15,083
2,252
1,260
86,386

105,110

123,648
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As at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—HF+-_A=+—H

Notes
BaE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings EEE 24
Net assets EEFRE
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners EABEE AELER
of the Company
Share capital %N 25
Reserves G 26
Total equity AR
On behalf of the Board REEFS

Hubert Tien
A2

Director

EF

Farzad Gozashti
Farzad Gozashti
Director

EF

2015
HK$’000
TR

637

135,757

X
129,757

135,757

2014
HK$'000
TAT

879

122,769

6,000
116,769

122,769
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HE-_FT—HF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Share Share Merger  Statutory Translation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
RE  RHRE A0HE  AERE  RERE  REEA a%
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T TiEn FiEn T T TiEr FiEn
(note 26(a)  (note 26(b)  (note 26(c)  (note 26(c))
(Metoe@)  (Mistoelo)) (Mistoei)  (Mizko6(d)

At 1 January 2014 R-E-mE-F-A 6,000 40,690 2988 1,719 6,188 39,680 97,265
Profit for the year R - - - - - BE19 25679
Other comprehensive income Eft2EhE
- Exchange loss on translation of - BEENE BB RENE LB

financial statements of foreign operations - - - - (179) - (175)
Total comprehensive income for the year  £E2FMHEE - - - - (75 25679 25,504
Profit appropriation to reserve BEREDHEN - - - 660 - (660) 3
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R-%-mE+-A=1-8 122,769

R=2-%%-5-A

Proft for the year ERR
Other comprehensive income Eth2EkE

- Exchangeloss on transiation of financial - AE BN EBBHER

statements of forelgn operations HERLEE (2744 (2,744)

Total comprehensive income for the year  £E2 A% (2,744) 12,988

Profit appropriation to reserve

At 31 December 2015

RZE-E§+-RA=1-A 135,757
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GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z—-ZF—RAF+_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FET FAET
Cash flows from operating activities REKETENHESRE
Profit before income tax W PSR4 A 19,386 31,567
Adjustments for: MTINSIEFE
Bank interest income RITHBEMA 7 (360) (377)
Interest expenses B 8 158 295
Amortisation of payments for leasehold RELHELTHEE AR
land held for own use under FAE < T 5H
operating lease 9 54
Depreciation of property, plant YE - REREEITE
and equipment 9 2,076
Gain on disposals of property, HEDE - BB MR ERE
plant and equipment 7 27)
Changes in fair value of derivative TSR T EMAFEEZS
financial instruments 242
Operating profit before working EiBE S BRI E R
capital changes 21,182 33,830
Increase in inventories FEEN (5,509) (1,730)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 e hE N R =R
bills receivables (g R (8,073) 14,447
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, £ - R EMER
prepayments and other receivables IR, (48n) 8,146 (18,939
Decrease in trade and bills payables B 5 SR IE K RS =R (15,131) (4,783)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, other TEIRER - HMEARIE
payables and receipts in advance MIBMEIEE I, CRd) 727 (2,082)
Settlement of derivative financial TTHESRBET BtE R
instruments, net 129 1,025
Cash generated from operations LIEATSIE S 1,471 21,768
Income tax paid BEARATISH (5,101) (4,855)
Net cash (used in)/generated from LeEsEE (FTA) s
operating activities BHEFREE (3,630) 16,913
Cash flows from investing activities REREEZBNRESRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment EEE W% « HE R &E (922) (396)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - MENBERERIE
plant and equipment 88 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BIEARITESRRL, (GEM)
bank deposits 919 (433)
Increase in time deposit TE BRI S3E 00 (5,104) (2,527)
Interest received ERLE 360 377

Net cash used in investing activities RETHFABRESFE (4,659) (2,979
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) xR EMEEK (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—-_ZT—HF+_-_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt TR TAT

Cash flows from financing activities REMETHNRESRE

Interest paid ERFLE (158) (295)
Proceeds of interest-bearing borrowings STEEEMERIE 6,240 -
Repayments of interest-bearing borrowings E&Ezt BEE (8,492) (7,353)

Net cash used in financing activities BETEHTARSEE (2,410) (7,648)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%{ﬁlﬁ |
and cash equivalents W) SRR (10,699) 6,286

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning £HR&REELEEIER

of the year 51,037
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net (RS Z Srik o (22
Cash and cash equivalents at EXREERESZEER

end of the year 57,301
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRASEEBRZERDW

cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances as stated in R BB RET 2

the consolidated statement of B MIRTTET

financial position 53,837 59,828
Time deposit with original maturity of REER A =AU LZ

more than three months TE BifF K 21 (7,631) (2,527)

46,206 57,301
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31 December 2015

—Z-hAF+-HA=+—H

GENERAL

Runway Global Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman Islands on 19 June 2013. The address of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
is disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” in the
annual report. The Company’s shares were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) by way of placing on 3
December 2013 and the listing of its shares has been transferred
from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 1 June
2015.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of apparels.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 22 March
2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1

2.2

Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs — First
effective on 1 January 2015

In the current year, the Group has applied the amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are first effective and
relevant for the Group’s financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2015.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011)  Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee

Contributions

The adoption of these new HKFRSs had no material impact
on how the financial performance and financial position
for the current and prior periods have been prepared and
presented.

New/amended HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The following new/amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant

to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but

are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by

the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle'

31 December 2015 —ZE—H&E+-F=+—H
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31 December 2015 —Z—AE+-F=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continueq)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

2

4

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of

Acceptable Methods

of Depreciation and
Amortisation'

Equity Method in
Separate Financial
Statements'

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture®

Investment Entities:
Applying the
Consolidation
Exeption’

Financial Instruments?

Regulatory Deferral
Accounts'
Revenue from
Contracts with
Customers?
Leases"

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

No mandatory effective date yet determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continueq)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 — Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that amortisation based
on revenue is not appropriate for intangible assets. The
presumption can be rebutted if either the intangible asset
is expressed as a measure of revenue or revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated.

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
(the business model test) and that have contractual terms
that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet
the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity’s business model is
both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to
sell the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity instruments
that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”).

31 December 2015 —ZE—H&E+-F=+—H
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continueq)

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains
the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS
15 supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and related interpretations.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach
to revenue recognition:

e Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

31 December 2015 —ZE—H&E+-F=+—H
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. R &H 8 B & 3 f:u': % A
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (BB KEHRSFERD]
(%)
2.2 New/amended HKFRSs in issue but not yet 2.2 CEMEREARERAH

effective (continueq)
HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16 is intended to replace HKAS 17 “Leases”
and HK(IFRIC) 4 “Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease”. HKFRS 16 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases for both parties to a contract, the customer
(“lessee”) and the supplier (“lessor”). The standard brings
most leases on-balance sheet for lessees under a single
model, eliminating the previous classifications of operating
and finance leases. The only exemption to this treatment
is for lease contracts with duration of less than one year.
The on-balance sheet treatment will result in the grossing
up of the balance sheet due to a right-of-use asset being
recognised with an offsetting liability. Lessor accounting
under the standard remains largely unchanged with
previous classifications of operating and finance leases
being maintained.

The Group will apply the above new standards and
amendments to standards when they become effective.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of the above new standards and amendments
to standards.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.3 New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
provisions relating to the preparation of
financial statements

The Group has adopted the amendments to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 622 (the “New CQO”) during the current
year.

The directors consider that there is no impact on the
Group’s financial position or performance, however the
New CO impacts on the presentation and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. For example, the
statement of financial position of the Company is now
presented in the notes to the financial statements rather
than as a primary statement and related notes to the
statement of financial position of the Company are generally
no longer presented.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASSs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosure required by the Listing Rules.

The financial statements have been prepared under historical
cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments which
are stated at fair values.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continue)

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in the preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
All values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the financial statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December each year.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed
on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have
been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with
the accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.2

43

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if
any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which it operates)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

31 December 2015
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.3 Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the rates approximating to those
ruling when the transactions took place are used. All assets
and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the translation reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., BERETHRME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.4 Property, plant and equipment 4.4 ¥  BERZE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their
estimated residual value over their estimated useful life,
using straight-line method as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements 4 to 5 years, or over the lease
terms, whichever is shorter

Machinery 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3to 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

The assets’ estimated residual values, estimated useful
lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.5

4.6

Payments for leasehold land held for own
use under operating lease

Payments for leasehold land held for own use under
operating lease represent up-front payments to acquire
long-term interests in lessee-occupied properties. These
payments are stated at cost and are amortised over the
period of the lease on straight-line method as an expense.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured at
fair value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

31 December 2015
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
if the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (ii) the assets are part of a
group of financial assets which is managed and its
performance evaluated on a fair value basis according
to a documented management strategy; or (iii) the
financial asset contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

()

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, including cash and
bank balances, comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flows
presentation, cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset and that event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; and

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments continueq)
(i)  Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss on loans and receivables is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When any
part of financial asset is determined as uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for the
relevant financial asset.

(iii)  Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.

The Group’s financial liabilities at amortised cost
include trade and bills payables, accruals and other
payables and interest-bearing borrowings.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
(iiij)  Financial liabilities (Continued)

(@)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Interest-bearing borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the loans using the effective interest method.

Interest-bearing borrowings are classified
as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of
each reporting period.

Other financial liabilities

All other financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value, net of directly attributable
transaction costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
(iv) Effective interest method

v)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
Revenue.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts
or separated from hybrid financial instruments,
are initially recognised at fair value on the date the
derivative contract is entered into and subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives that are not
designated as hedging instruments are accounted for
as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value are taken directly to profit or loss
for the year.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with HKAS
39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

4.8 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

31 December 2015
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have

been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares
are deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs

directly attributable to the equity transaction.

4.10 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of return, discounts, rebate and sales related
taxes. Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which is at the
time of delivery and the title is passed to customer.

Interest income is accrued on time-proportion basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate; and

Sample income is recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This is
usually taken at the time when the samples are delivered

and the customer has accepted the samples.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., BERETHRME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Income taxes 411 FBH

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.12 Employee benefit
(i)  Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group’s entities incorporated in Hong Kong
manages a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF scheme. The Group makes
contributions based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries funded by the Group and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme.

The Group’s entities established in the People’s
Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong and Macau
(the “PRC”) make monthly contributions to a state-
sponsored defined contribution scheme for the
local staff. The contributions are made at a specific
percentage on the standard salary pursuant to laws
of the PRC and relevant regulation issued by local
social security authorities.

In addition, the Group’s entities incorporated in the
United States of America (the “USA”) make monthly
contributions to a defined contribution scheme under
the relevant federal program for the local staff. The
Group makes contributions based on a percentage of
the local staff’s funded by the Group and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in the rules
of the scheme.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., BERETHRME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.12 Employee benefit continued) 412 EEER (&)

(i)  Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

4.13 Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
payments for leasehold land held for own use under
operating lease and interests in subsidiaries to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Impairment of other assets (continueq)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

4.14 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

4.15 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits that can be
reliably estimated will be resulted.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Related parties

@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company'’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Related parties (continueq)
(b)  (Continued)
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V)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in ().

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

U

(i)

(i)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes, timing of
payment of related taxes and interpretation of relevant
tax regulations. There are transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

In addition, deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. This requires significant judgement on the tax
treatments of certain transactions and also assessment on
the probability that adequate future taxable profits will be
available for the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of receivables

Provision policy for doubtful debts of the Group is based
on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and ageing
analysis of the outstanding receivables and on the
management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer and the related
parties. If the financial conditions of the customers and
other debtors of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
impairment may be required.

Impairment of inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories at each
reporting date, and makes allowance for impairment of
obsolete, slow-moving and impaired items. Management
estimates the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the expected future market conditions and the
estimated selling price. The Group makes allowance for
impairment if the net realisable value is below the carrying
amount.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-
generating unit (the “CGU”) to which the asset is allocated.
Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the CGU
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. A change
in the estimated future cash flows and/or the discount
rate applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.
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AEEEEBREE2RARMG
B WEHER - B MOREE R
EITREREE - BEEETIERE
BHARR TR AT EE R %
SHEENREETE - AEEY
A RFEERREERNERF
HIREZE

FUBEERE

REBRERENRFHES
FHEBRTEEREHRBEDN
PR MiFEERBE@EIR
AEERIEHEENATHE SR
TR b - B AHEERDR
MR EL B MERBEED
fb&t - hEHEREER 2R EE
FIRER T EE B RTEHIRR
REnEFHbst  WEESE
MR EUAEZFRESREN
BE - it RARRSRER R
PR A EVRAIR R B B S B BUA
EER R AFHRERETELH
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5.

Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(e) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment
In determining the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear
and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal
or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of
the useful life of the asset is made based on the experience
of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar
way. Depreciation charge is revised if the estimated useful
lives of items of property, plant and equipment are different
from the previous estimation. Estimated useful lives are
reviewed, at the end of each reporting period, based on
changes in circumstances.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may earn
revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of the
internal management reporting information that is provided to
and regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision
maker in order to allocate resources and assess performance
of the segment. The information reported to the executive
directors, who are the chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance,
do not contain profit or loss information of each product line
or geographical area and the executive directors reviewed the
financial result of the Group as a whole reported under HKFRSs.
Therefore, the executive directors have determined that the
Group has only one single business component/reportable
segment as the Group is only engaged in manufacturing and
trading of apparels. The executive directors allocate resources
and assess performance on an aggregated basis. Accordingly,
no operating segment is presented.

31 December 2015 —ZE—H&E+-F=+—H

5. EREHFRMEETRE

ERENEERR (&)

() ¥k - MERZENMG
=t AT fE A1
REENE - BERRENTE
RS - FEBASESER
% PIMAENESRE - S
EUEA  AENRERSE -
AR BB EER KR RFUR
) o AER AR BT
BAEERARBTORLAE
MR © Y% - BB R
R IE B A AT B B
FfEE TR - AIRETER
B o REMEIR - ATLAFE
TSR TR -

=E#

gaDER T A S BN = A REUR S &
SIBFAX R EIEE M — (EHERK AR
7 ARENRREERRALBREHR
NEMERAMES DB ERD I REK
BEHMEO N ERE 2 HREH BERT
BELEDE - WAFEMS - AH
REREERRANRITESERINA
ERDEERDENERFENZE
B WREERERRISEMLEDN
BEEMN  MATEFTERILERN
AEEREFBVHRE ERZ R
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31 December 2015 —Z—AE+-F=+—H

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal places of the Group’s operations are in the PRC and
Hong Kong. Management determines the Group is domiciled in
Hong Kong, which is the Group’s principal operating location.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is divided into the
following geographical areas:

DESER (&)

KAAAB—EEEZER AR mMASE
B8 0 BB R R B R B o
EEERESTALEEEEFE
Hy - EBTAAE B E B -

REBRBINAEFPRALRIA T

EE5D -

The USA EB
Canada mex
Others HbBIx

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRET TATT
258,796 253,710
102,887 123,762
10,042 2,243
371,725 379,715

Geographical location of external customers is based on the
location at which the customers are domiciled. No revenue was
attributable to Hong Kong, the place that the Group is domiciled,
during the years presented.

The principal non-current assets held by the Group are located
in the PRC. Insignificant portion of the non-current assets is
located in Hong Kong, the place that the Group is domiciled at
the reporting date.

SINREFRMIBLERRIBEE PG
WwE D - RIS FEAEENFEEL
BRAEEBUWA

AEEFENERIIFRBDEEDUR
TE - RBERH RBELEFRD
BEMNAEENEZLEE -



B IR R A T
—E-REER

6.

Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from each of the major customers which accounted for
10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the year is set out below:

31 December 2015 —ZE—HAF+-_A=+—H

DEER (@)
5 [ 4E P A A5 £ B A 10% 55 BA 49
S FBEBREHRAFIIIT :

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FH&T

Customer A BEHR
Customer B BFE
Customer C =2FRA
Customer D Z2BET
Customer E ®PIX

101,565 123,762
85,510 86,873
53,589 56,075

N/A FiE A * 43,459
51,399 38,731

Accounted for less than 10% of the Group’s revenue

As at 31 December 2015, 77% (2014: 88%) of the Group’s trade
receivables were due from four (2014: five) major customers.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the sales of apparels, net of returns,
discounts, rebates and sales related taxes.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

* PRGN RAKEEA 10%

R-ZE—AFE+=-A=+—H ©fH
(ZZ—HF : AR) TERFMER
BEOAMEASEE SEKIET7% (=
T—PU4F : 88%) °

WA - BB AR WS

W MR SRR YA+ S EA
RRE T BMRRHEEEB
BUOE -

WA~ B A RSO DT
2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET T

Revenue ON
Sale of goods HEER 371,725 379,715
Other income and gains HibW A Rz
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE - BE &R ERE

plant and equipment 27
Interest income FEMA 377
Sample income BRREA 399
Sundry income B 190

993

37
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BERZA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Interest on borrowings BERE 108 251
Interest on obligations REERERENF S
under finance leases 50 44
295
9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRFFEHBANZER
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging: R PR ST A& M) D AS HBR T 71 5 1812
E
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Amortisation of payments for MEERAH T HEAR
leasehold land held for own use HIFAE + b~ SR 5
under operating lease 54 54
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEE 600 570
Cost of inventories recognised BiERAASTNTFERAE
as expense 278,906 285,628
Depreciation of property, plant YIE - R N RETE
and equipment 1,974 2,076
Foreign exchange losses, net VE H 518 %58 1,406 1,124
Operating lease charges in respect 1 R &2 P48 44 FH 4 & F
of land and buildings 3,695 3,628
Employee benefit expense BEEBAFRAX
(including directors’ emoluments (BIEEEH
(note 10)) (M3E10))
— Wages and salaries -IENHS 49,199
— Pension scheme contribution —RORETEIEK
— defined contribution plans - REMHEETE 2,429
— Other benefits - H g A 3,421

55,049
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31 December 2015 —ZE—HAF+-_A=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST

10. EEMERAEESHFA
PAID INDIVIDUALS T

(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EE=M<E
The emoluments of each of the directors for the years RV GEEGRESHIE W
presented are set out below: N

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Pension
in kind scheme
Fees 4 - 2B contributions Total
ik REWEN  RIKGTEMLR st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
THET THT THET FET
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-E-1F
TZAZ+-HLEE
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Chen Gang (appointed on PR 4 S
11 September 2015) (R=—Z—hF
HA+—H
BZEE)
Mr. Qu Chenghiao (appointed on BRI E
3 December 2015) (R=ZT—H4F
+-A=H
BEE)
Mr. Hubert Tien HBEZ L4

Mr. Farzad Gozashti

Farzad Gozashti 7t 4

Independent non-executive directors:  BUIFHITESE -
Mr. Chan Kin Sang (appointed on BRgExE
5 October 2015) (RZZ—1%F
+AAREZA)
Mr. Lai Man Sing BVNERAE
Ms. Luo Dan (appointed on BALT
5 October 2015) (R-Z-1%
+AAREZA)
Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon Gt
(resigned on 3 December 2015) (R=Z—1%F
+-A=REMI)
Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin iRt

Total emoluments

ok
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 10. EEMEeRAEBERSFA

PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) T
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EE=M<E
The emoluments of each of the directors for the years RV GEEGRESHE W
presented are set out below: N
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Pension
in kind scheme
Fees e e contributions Total
ik REMRH  RIGHEIRER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T T TR
Year ended 31 December 2014 BZE-Z—NmE
TZRA=t-ALEE
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Hubert Tien HBEHEE - 1,517 17 1,534
Mr. Farzad Gozashti Farzad Gozashti 7t £ - 1,634 - 1,634
- 3,051 17 3,068
Independent non-executive directors: B IEHTEE -
Mr. Lai Man Sing BYERAE 120 - - 120
Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon ol 120 - - 120
Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin HFEEE 120 - - 120
360 - - 360

Total emoluments e @z 360 3,051 17 3,428
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST

PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included 2
(2014: 2) directors for the year whose emoluments are

reflected in note 10(a). The analysis of the emoluments of
the remaining 3 (2014: 3) highest paid individuals for the

(c)

year is set out below:

Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

31 December 2015 —ZE—H&E+-F=+—H

10.

EEMEREBEEHTA

+ @)

b) EBEEHFAL
AEEAEENRELASEDSHFAL
BERG (ZE—NE: ME)
B MMA0BS B RN
10@) ° EH=% (ZZT—mF :
=8) BEHATRRNEZ I

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

e RAREVER

SOWET
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT TAT
5,860

Number of non-director highest paid employees whose
emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows:

HEFRETIEEOMSERIA
THE -

Number of employees

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

Z % 1,000,000 7T

1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7 7T % 2,000,000 # 7T
3,000,001 7T E 3,500,000 % 7T

BEAH

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THAT

1

1

’

3

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
no director or any of the highest paid individuals waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments and there were no
emoluments paid by the Group to the directors or any of
the highest paid individuals of the Group as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

(c) REE-_ZT-—HFR-_FT—NF
oA+ —HIEFE  BEE
EREMEDHFALHELRE
HWEERAME - BAEEBRER
ERdEM&ReSHFALTINER
W& - ERAFEMARKE L
MAKREERE - SkEERmE -
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—E-REt+-A=1+—H

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11. FIEHEIEX

Current income tax charged
for the year:

Hong Kong profits tax

PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”)

USA corporate income tax

REENHAEHMAX

BENEHR

ESETkE S

FREMEMEH ([DEMEHR])

(i)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) and the Cayman Islands, the Group is not
subject to any taxation under these jurisdictions.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year.

PRC EIT is provided at 25% (2014: 25%) on the estimated
assessable profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiary for the
year.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding income tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. As
at 31 December 2015, temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiary amounted
to HK$21,838,000 (2014: HK$16,054,000). No deferred
tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of these
differences because the Group is in a position to control the
dividend policies of this subsidiary and it is probable that
these profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

The USA corporate income tax comprises federal income
tax calculated at 15% and state and local income tax
calculated at various rates on the estimated assessable
profits of the Group’s subsidiary in the USA.

(i)

(i)

(v)

2015
HK$’000
TR

2014
HK$'000
THAT

3,910
1,963
15

5,888

RELBHARRS (ZE4
BREE]) MFASESNRA
AP NEEBABNZLE A
ERERAEATIA o

BENSREAFEEEBEL
) ETFE AR TS M B 16.5% (=
T4 : 16.5%) 5t H °

PRI EMEH R AR EBPEH
M8 A B A FE M (AR FER TR
FH25% ( ZZT — W4 : 25%)
AT -

RIBFBEMEMERE B=F
SNF—A—B#  FEPE
M A mIBRER 2 5 M 2 RA A B
BUTEMAGEH - RZT—hF
+—A=+—10  EFEHRER
AIMADIRAEFIEEOE =
F $ %8 /521,838,000 7T ( =
T — P04 : 16,054,000 7T) ©
B EEEW EERELHIER
& RESASEEFEEH1LT
WEBARREBENMA - MA
B = 27 LSRR Re g
@ o

EECREFEHBERAEER
£ EMHIE A TR B
FI32 15% 5T 5 #0850 57 9 54
BT RBEE B RO R M7 F
/8% -
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11.

12.

13.

Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(v)  (Continued)
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit
before income tax at the statutory tax rate to the income
tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

31 December 2015 —ZE—H&E+-F=+—H

11. SRR @)

v &
BAER KRG EHRAAEH AR
MERRAEHAS - BIRER
754 3 7 TE O TS 798 B S O 1 BR 4

Profit before income tax R BT 1S 8% A4

AjE FR A B AT IS Rl AR &
A E R R G E T IR

Tax calculated at the rates
applicable to profits in the tax
jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Others EAb

TREHBRAXOMEE &

PRS TR

Income tax expense

T

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
19,386 31,567

5,819

91
@2)

5,888

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was declared during the year (2014: Nil) and
the board of directors of the Company does not recommend the
payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic earnings per share are based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$15,732,000 (2014: HK$25,679,000) and the
weighted average of 600,000,000 (2014: 600,000,000) shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in
existence during the years.

1 2- Hﬁz%\

AEEYESRPHRE (ZF—K
FE) ARAEFETERRNE
ECE-HF+ZRA=1+—HILFE
HUREIR S (ZF—M4F : |) o

13. BREF

BRERBFTIIREARRER AR
1R EEE T 415,732,000/ 7T (==
—PU4E : 25,679,000/ ) MEFEAND
1T % 10 # 0 A F 39 £1600,000,000
A% (—Z — P04 : 600,000,000 f%) &t

H o
B

B 5 4 PO 4 (B TS
B HERESRNEREREAR
7 o
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BWERZE
Furniture,
fixtures
and office
Leasehold equipment Motor
Buildings improvements  Machinery i - £8 vehicles Total
BF HENREE HE RBLERG byt @it

HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000
AL TERL TERL TERL ThL ThRL

At 1 January 2014 RZE-RE-A-A
Cost A 17,507 5,967 3,048 8,579 12363 37,454
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (4,851) (5,894) (1,708 (7,000) (641) (20,184)
Net carrying amount REFE 12,746 73 2,240 1489 722 17,210
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-E-DF
TZAST-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount FORESE 12,746 73 2,240 1489 722 17,210
Additions e - - 83 1,061 - 1,634
Disposals ik - - ©) (289) - (291)
Depreciation e (790) (48 (308) (676) (254) (2,076)
Exchange differences ERZE (1) - ") 4 @) (64)
Closing net carrying amount EREESE 11,905 % 2,002 2,075 466 16,473
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+ZA=1-R

and 1 January 2015 R=E-1%-A-H
Cost KA 17,524 5,946 3,985 8,965 1,357 31,777
Accumulated depreciation ZiiTE (5,619) (5,921) (1,989 (6,390) (891) (21304)
Net carrying amount REFE 11,905 25 2,002 2,075 466 16,473

Year ended 31 December 2015 Hz-E-1E

TZAZT-HLEE

Opening net carrying amount ENREEE 2,002 2,075

Additions HE 9 497

Disposals & 6] =

Depreciation Vil (308) (660)

Exchange differences EREE (101) (28)

Closing net carrying amount EXRERE 1,689 1,884

At 31 December 2015 RZE-EF+ZA=1-A

Cost A 16,553 5,669 3,853 9,264 36,517
Accumulated depreciation ZihE (6,053) (5,650) (2,164) (7,380) (21,940)

Net carrying amount BERE 10,500 19 1,689 1,884 14,577
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

15.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s buildings with net carrying
amounts or approximately HK$5,582,000 were pledged to
secure the Group’s bills payable (note 22).

As at 31 December 2015, the net carrying amounts of the
Group’s assets under finance leases included in the total
amounts of furniture, fixtures and office equipment amounted to
HK$846,000 (2014: HK$1,093,000).

PAYMENTS FOR LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR

31 December 2015 —ZE—H&E+-F=+—H

14.

15.

W BERSE @
RZZE—RF+=-A=+—80 " KA
{E#75,582,000 B L AEBREFE
WK BREAEENEMNZEE (K
502) o

RZE—RE+-_A=+—H B
HAGRM  HEBERBAERELSE
MAEBERERANETEENERR
S 1 &846,00078 7t (—Z — [0 4 :
1,093,000 7T) °

REEHN N FER A/

OWN USE UNDER OPERATING LEASE AE L R
2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HERmFE 2,119 2,183
Amortisation b3 (54) (54)
Exchange differences N ZR (112) (10)
Net carrying amount at 31 December #+— A =-+—BEE%*E 1,953 2,119
Less: Current portion (note 18) B BNEAEE S (Mf7E18) (54) (54)
Non-current portion JEBNERER > 1,899 2,065

The lease prepayments of the Group represent the Group’s land
use right in respect of a land located in the PRC which is held
under a medium-term lease. Land use right is pledged to secure
the Group’s bills payable as at the reporting date (note 22).

REBMBEENRIEASER R
AR B BAOFEEN T nE
HMERAE RREBH - TiER
HEERE - NERAEENENZE
(Mf7E22) ©
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16. INVENTORIES

16. &

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THAT

Raw materials and consumables RE R FEM
Work in progress FEm
Finished goods BIpK M

4,266 4,201
1,730 1,370
19,152 14,606

25,148 20,177

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

17. EZBWFRERERRE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THAT

Trade receivables H 5 WA
Bills receivable FEURE %

64,379 59,790
6,822 3,391

71,201 63,181

Trade receivables are recognised at their original invoice
amounts which represented their fair values at initial recognition.
The Group’s trade receivables are attributable to a number of
independent customers with credit terms. Bills receivable are
received from independent customers under the ordinary course
of business. The Group normally allows a credit period ranging
from 10 to 90 days (2014: 10 to 60 days) to its customers. Trade
and bills receivables are non-interest bearing.

B O REYGRIERREZEER - A&
LE SR ERVLHERRENAF
B AEENE SELUFEENZ A
EHEEHNBIER - BRZEEA
REEEKBREPEB LR P WE -
AEBEBEETEEPNF10290K
(ZZ—[U%F : 10E60K) HEEH -
Z S EWGIE M BRSBTS
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17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continue) 17. EZBURERERRERE

Ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date is as
follows:

(&)
BIEFEZEAANE 5 ERGIERR S
T -

0 to 30 days 0&30H
31 to 60 days 31E260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
91 to 180 days 912180 H
Over 180 days @180 H

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
17,129 25,567
18,609 23,008
22,706 8,012
3,342 963
2,593 2,240
64,379 59,790

As at the reporting date, the Group reviewed its trade receivables
for evidence of impairment on both individual and collective basis.
The Group recognised impairment loss on individual assessment
based on the accounting policy stated in note 4.7(ii). The Group
did not hold any collateral as security over the trade receivables.
However, in order to minimise the credit risk of not receiving
payments from its customers, the Group has entered into
arrangements with a financial institution in the USA and a bank in
Hong Kong (which in turn entered into certain arrangement with
an insurance company in this connection) which offered trade
receivable credit protection arrangement against the Group’s
trade receivables for certain major customers. As at 31 December
2015, trade receivables of approximately HK$23,790,000 (2014:
HK$18,476,000) were under such arrangements of which if the
Group ultimately becomes unable to collect the trade receivables,
the Group will be entitled to receive compensation for the trade
receivables from the financial institution or the bank.

RRE B E - RERIZERIFIL
HERGEESHERMFE  UEHES
BERIRERNRE - AEEREN T
A7() ATt & 5B - IR E RIS
FRERAEESE AEETERZ
SEYGRIBH AR - A
AEEDHRER-—REMERBRES
—RIRTTEI LT HE (M & B &
BITAREERRABIYE TR
B BETEIEEFRms A4EE
WE ZERFIBREE ZEKFIERE
BRE - W-_ZE—RAFE+-_A=+—
B -+ 4923,790,000/7C (ZZ—PU4 ¢
18,476,000 L) M B S EKFIAZ
B EBTHRE - Bt nAKER
KRR BB 5 RN TE - ARE
EEEZSREESNRITREHEES
FEURGRIBAR T RE(E -
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17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables that were not impaired and
based on due dates is as follows:

17. ES BB RERERRE
(#)
I FE R ME R AR B H B 9 5 8GR
AIRER AN

Neither past due nor impaired BEARBH TR ARUE

Not more than 90 days past due BT BB 90 B

91 days to not more than BHEA91 HET#8:m 180 H
180 days past due

181 days to not more than #mAg181 HE TR —F
1 year past due

More than 1 year past due mElERR —F

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
31,296 46,370
30,490 10,925
256

1,210

1,029

59,790

Trade receivables which were neither past due nor impaired
related to customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
a number of customers that had a good track record of credit
with the Group. Based on past credit history, the directors of the
Company believe that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered to
be fully recoverable.

BE AR HA MR E ) B 5 JEUGRIE
RHE P - I R R A SRR

BLHNERRE R B 5 B WRIAFT S K
MELEF  EAKEHAERIE
R - REBEERESL - ARRES
RBBAR IS ERELRERE
REARGEEERLEHRERNES
A B EAR AR 28U -
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18. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 18. BE - AARKRHAEY
RECEIVABLES FRIE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THAT

Prepayments and other receivables, T8 R E b
gross FEW R - 8% 27,265 37,366
Less: Provision for impairment losses J& : {8 18 & & (1,918) (1,918)

Prepayments and other receivables, FEfTF M E M

net FEM R - R 35,448
Deposits ®e 2,844
Payments for leasehold land held for RAEETL TG AR

own use under operating lease FE TR (FiFE15)

(note 15) 54

38,346
Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related B A% 480 HA 7% A8 0 (8 L b JE MR IE S %
to counterparties for whom there was no recent history of default. R SEF - 190 B BIHE RS R
The directors of the Company consider that other receivables ik ARABIEZRR - ZEHASE
that were neither past due nor impaired at the reporting date HA TR R (E B Ho At FE YR IE - P E
under review are of good credit quality. BEMREARYEERIEEEER -
There was no movement in the provision for impairment of HE-_ZT—AFR-ZE-—NF+=A
prepayments and other receivables during the years ended 31 =+—HLEFE - BRREMER

December 2015 and 2014. RIE R EREN RS EEY -
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19.

20.

—E-EFT-A=+-F

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In prior years, the Group entered into foreign exchange structured
forward contracts to mitigate exchange rate exposure of United
States dollars (“‘US$”) and Renminbi (‘RMB”) against HK$. These
foreign exchange structured forward contracts are not designated
for hedge purposes and are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. All these forward contracts were settled in 2015.
No changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments
were recognised in profit or loss during the year (2014: losses of
HK$242,000).

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s time deposits of
HK$4,476,000 (2014: HK$4,602,000) and HK$4,180,000
(2014: HK$5,233,000) were pledged as securities for the
Group’s bills payable (note 22) and banking facilities respectively.
These banking facilities amounting to HK$60,300,000 (2014:
HK$49,100,000), which are also secured by the corporate
guarantee provided by the Company, have not been utilised as at
the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2015, pledged bank deposits carried interest
at average market rates ranged from 0.22% to 1.30% (2014
0.25% to 2.55%) per annum. The carrying amount of the Group’s
pledged bank deposits are denominated in HK$ and RMB.

19.

20.

fTEEmTI A

RBAFE  AEBEFTLINESEE M
REIAHNREEETLRARE LS
THIERER - ZSINEEBIERB
AW IEIEEEE R BRI BEBIE
HEATEAE - LA RIAY
ER-ZE—hEHE - AEEWVEL
BadBRATESRTIANATESE
&) (ZZ— U : 518242,00087T) °

2EBRITEX
R-ZE—RE+-A=+—H K&
B & HITF 304,476,000 T (=&
—PU4 : 4,602,000/ 7T) &4,180,000
Bt (ZZF— W4 : 5,233,000 7T)
BEFEA DREALEENENE
B (H5E22) RIRTTREE MIER - R
s B E - 5% 560,300,000 7T (=
T — 04 : 49,100,000/ 7T) Z R1T
BE (REARRRENARERA
HAR) MARBA -

R-ZT—RFE+-_A=+—H B
HRITERAT SR EGENT
0.22% % 1.30% (ZZ — M4 : 0.25%
£2.55%) FHE o NEBDIEKMIRITE
KRB ENS TR ARETIEER
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21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

31 December 2015 —ZE—H&E+-F=+—H

21. BEeRBITERF

RekHeHEERE
B

Cash and cash equivalents
Time deposits

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT
46,206 57,301
7,631 2,527
53,837 59,828

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are made for six months
(2014: six months) and earns interest at short-term deposit rate
of 3.05% (2014: 3.05%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had cash and bank
balances and pledged bank deposits denominated in
RMB amounting to approximately HK$18,507,000 (2014:
HK$20,557,000) which were placed with certain banks in the
PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government. Under the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through the banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

BFASRITHRSIES BFERFELF
)R R BT o 52 BT AIE RN (A
B(ZZ—m4 : XEA) WiREH
ERAMERTFI05%( T —POF:
3.05%) BEEA & o

R-E—RE+-_A=+—8 £&&
BMH e RIBITETUARNAARE
B/ B IR IR1T1F 50 4Y A 18,507,000
Bt (= F — M 4 ¢ 20,557,000 7%
JC)  FEIRESRAME TIRIT . A
RETECAHIBRAEMER PR
PE SR BH AN B o B IR RO HNE S
BB AR IR o RIE A E A (HNEE IR
&HI) R CEEE - EERMNEEER
) AKBEAESBEEEITINEE
FORITISARE LR BHMER -
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22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 22 ESENRERENERE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade payables BB NI 35,659 52,451
Bills payable A EE 14,919 15,340
50,578 67,791
Credit periods of trade payables normally granted by its suppliers HEBGTASEE S ENFIENGE
were ranging from 15 to 120 days (2014: from 15 to 120 days). BEH—BNTF155120K (ZE—@
F:165]120K) °
Ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as REBZZHHNE HENFIARRS
follows: Mo
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FET
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 17,268 20,741
31 to 60 days 31£60H 7,058 17,816
61 to 90 days 61£290H 6,585 5,371
91 to 180 days 91 & 180H 2,590 6,256
Over 180 days HBi@E180H 2,158 2,267

35,659 52,451

Bills payable are normally settled on 180-day (2014: 180) credit ENZEEBEIZ180K (ZT—MM4E :
terms. 180K) M{E EHAGT -
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23. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND RECEIPTSIN  23. FHIRE A - HtiE KA

=%
ADVANCE RFEWFRIE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FAET
Accruals BIRER 4,229 4,984
Other payables Hofth e IE 9,024 9,452
Receipts in advance FAWRRIE 2,353 647
15,606 15,083
24. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 24. ;TEEBE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Current portion: EEAEh S
Bank loan, guaranteed (note) RITER - BER () 593
Bank loan due for repayment after HEREREEGEIE
one year which contain repayment A —F & EEH
on demand clause, guaranteed WITER - BER (M)
(note) 1,429
Obligations under finance leases, BEREAE  GEAE (HE27()
secured (note 27(a)) 230
2,252
Non-current portion: FEEBS
Obligations under finance leases, BRBMERE - HER (HEo7@)
secured (note 27(a)) 879
3,131
Interests borne at rates per annum  F|EBRNFUTEHEZ
in the range of: FHEHE
— Fixed-rate borrowings - TBEE 5.0%
— Variable-rate borrowings - 2EEE 4.3%
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24. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued) 24, tERBE #®)
Total interest-bearing borrowings due for repayment based on ERBEERBE (Rt RERKE
the scheduled repayment dates without taking into the effect of KEBBRIMTE) WEEETEE
any repayment on demand clause are as follows: BT
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —FER 242 823
More than one year, but not —F P HETBBME
exceeding two years 254 860
More than two years, but not MF A EBTHEBART
exceeding five years 383 1,448
879 3,131
Note: The bank loan was secured by personal guarantees by the directors of the ffsr - RZE—WF+ZA=+—R ' #f17E
Company as at 31 December 2014. The guarantee has been released upon AR AR ESELAEABRRRR
the Group’s full repayment of the loans during the year. Fo AFEN - BRANEEEEE R
BRIE D RRRR o
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. BA&
Number of
ordinary
shares at Nominal
HK$0.01 each value
BREE of ordinary
0.01#& T shares
ZEKREE ZEREE
HK$'000
FAET
Authorised: SEE
At 1 January 2014, RZE—MNFE—A—QH -
31 December 2014 and ZE-mF+ZA=+—HBK
31 December 2015 —ZT—hHF+=-_A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
At 1 January 2014, RZZE—MNE—A—QH -
31 December 2014 and —E-UFE+-_A=+t—HBK

31 December 2015 —Z-hF+ZA=1+—H 600,000,000 6,000
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26. RESERVES

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share premium

The share premium account represents the excess of the
proceeds received over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued, net of share issue costs.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to certain
reorganisation of the Group and the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant PRC laws, the subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer at least
10% of its net profit after tax, as determined under the
PRC accounting regulation, to a statutory reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the subsidiary’s registered
capital. The transfer of this reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividend to the subsidiary’s equity
owners. The statutory reserve is non-distributable other
than upon the liquidation of the subsidiary.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4.3.

31 December 2015 —ZE—H&E+-F=+—H

26. %

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

{8

B 3 (B ARG B M TS SR B
ADFERTRAEE GIHRK
ARITERA) M -

Bt

REENA HHREERARRE
BUAFYEIE A DNRAEE
BAD AFR TR E(E 2 R
£

EE
RIFEBHBEER  EFEK
VR BARAE L BEKRK
BRAFE10% (REDE SR
PIERE) BAEERE  EER
AR ERIN B QR E AR
50% &1k ° & AR
AP A R A D IRALE
ZRE o BRI B A BB -
EERBTEDI

BEREE
BERFREBERESINGE AR
M TSR FTE AR 2 ERE L ZE
B o RFEBHRENE43HIIN
SERFETTRIE ©
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27. LEASE COMMITMENTS

(a) Finance lease commitments

The Group leased its office equipment under a finance
lease with an average lease term of 5 years. The Group’s
obligation under finance lease is secured by the lessor’s
title to the leased asset.

Interest rate underlying all obligations under finance lease is
fixed at respective contract date at 5.0% (2014: 5.0%) per
annum.

Future minimum rental payables are as follows:

27. HE&RIE

(a)

Within one year

In the second to fifth years F_Z=RF

Less: Future finance charges

B RKREE R

RERENRRE

Present value of minimum lease
payments

Present value of minimum lease payments included in
consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:

Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE

— Current portion - BNEAEE
Interest-bearing borrowings ATEEE

- Non-current portion — FEBNEREL &

BMEREEE
AEBREBERE (FHAE
FHALE) BEREMAER
o AEERBEREET 2%
BoHEANREaE HEE
{EFELR -

Fi A AT AENE Y 6 B RNE
MAEHBHEE AL0%(ZF
—PO4 : 5.0%) °

AREMNFERSHIOT

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FATT
280 280
678 958
958 1,238

) (129)
1,109

FEABRE W BIR R SIEHE
NFEREMT

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT
230

879

1,109
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27. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments
Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable
operating lease of the Group in respect of land and
buildings are as follows:

31 December 2015

“F-EE+-A=t-H

27. HEAE »)
(b) REFHEHRIE
AREBRENAFHESEHER
RN Y AR EES

—FR
F-EREF

Within one year
In the second to fifth years

I
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT
2,362 3,260
715 2,870
3,077 6,130

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of 1 year to 5 years
(2014: 1 year to 5 years). None of these leases include any
contingent rentals.

28. LITIGATION

Since 2011, the Group’s subsidiary, Runway Global Limited
(“Runway HK”), had a dispute (the “Dispute”) with an independent
PRC-established supplier (the “Respondent”) over (i) non-
delivery of certain apparels (the “Goods”) by the Respondent to
the customer of Runway HK amounted to US$342,000, (i) the
advance of US$130,000 by Runway HK to pay the shipment
cost of the Goods, and (i) the Respondent’s non-delivery of a
large portion of apparels which represented part of the Goods
that Runway HK had subsequently agreed to purchase and paid
for.

RBKEHE  ~EEHEEST
mE-BEVFRH—ERF
(ZZ—mF: —=0F) - BF
HEHTBREIMRAEE -

28. =F&k
BR-ZZ——F  AEENMHNBERAR]
BFMIRERAR ((BHEE]) &
HA—RE—ZRPEKMNE L
EmEtEn ((E8Al) s
BROZHARERNBE Y EBNE
PRXEAETRERA (&R €
%A 5342,0003% 7T ¢ (i) B & BB B
130,000 T A Z N ERMERNE
B Rii) Z@mATEMERSSH
FrEEERERSREWD MM

Yt O
®am e
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28.

29.

—E-EFT-A=+-F

LITIGATION (continuea)

In 2012, Runway HK and the Respondent filed statements of
claim and counterclaim to the Hong Kong International Arbitration
Centre (“HKIAC”) for the Dispute. On 28 April 2014, a final
judgement was awarded by the HKIAC in favour of Runway HK
and the Respondent is obliged to settle the overdue amount
totalling US$238,000 (approximately HK$1,856,000) plus
interests with Runway HK. As of 31 December 2014 and 2015,
the Group is in the process of enforcing the collection of overdue
amount in accordance with the relevant legal procedures. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, no asset is recognised
in respect of this claim after considering the likelihood of the
successful debt collection. No provision has been made by the
Group for the counterclaim from the Respondent.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following significant
related party transactions during the year.

(a) Transactions with related parties

As at the reporting date, maximum amounts of financial
guarantees provided by the directors of the Company with
respect to certain banking facilities granted to and utilised
by the Company’s subsidiary are as follows:

28.

29.

AR (&)

RIT——F BEHEBSRERAR
MR RBEBBEBHERLRTBARR
REZRE - RZFE—WEMPA=+N
B - BEEBRHREFOEL L
EFNREHFR  ZRABAARES
Y2 1 EAFIE A 51 238,000 7T (49
1,856,000/8 L) ERF B - HEZ
E-NER _E-—REF+_A=+—
B ASEEERBEESEERFD
TIREIBHAFIE - RAREERE
REBRINKEESH AT REME% - I
BRI REEREE - AEEWER
ZRAKN R BRTIZEE -

B R 5

Rz EM B RREMELAAFLAR

SN REBRFERA AT EXRE
TTRG e

(a) SREBHTHNRZ
RIERH  AATEEHET
AARIMBA L E B B rO%E
TFROBMERUNIHRRES

Mr. Tien and Mr. Gozashti jointly

M %t 4 B2 Gozashti 9t 4 T RIHEIR

(b) Key management personnel remuneration
The Group defines directors as key management personnel

and their remuneration are set out in note 10(a).

SEMAT
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
3,000
(b) EEEBAESHNHE
FEEFREEERIZEEA

8 - HEMSHRKIEE10@) °
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31 December 2015 —ZE—HAF+-_A=+—H

30. ¢RITESE
RBEHFTESRTAERINER
BT :

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH&T

Financial assets BREE
Financial assets at fair value AT EFEREETA
through profit or loss EHERNIBEE

— Derivative financial instruments -fTESETA 129

Loans and receivables ERREYWHIA

— Trade and bills receivables - BSRKFEREREE 71,201 63,181

— Deposits and other receivables - e REMEKFE 26,205 35,349

— Pledged bank deposits - BEIRRTER 8,656 9,835

— Cash and bank balances -BERRTER 53,837 59,828
159,899 168,322

Financial liabilities MBaE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost  R# KA 2K EE

— Trade and bills payables - B ENTERENEE 67,791

— Accruals and other payables -BREAREERNTE 14,436

— Interest-bearing borrowings -HEBE 3,131

85,358
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of directors.
The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets.

(a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposures to currency risk arise mainly from its overseas
sale transactions and settlement of its overseas purchases,
both of which are primarily denominated in US$ and RMB.
These are not the functional currencies of the Group entities
to which these transactions relate.

All the Group’s foreign exchange structured forward
contracts are approved by the executive directors. In
addition, the Group will not enter into any additional foreign
exchange structured forward contracts unless advance
approval by the shareholders has been obtained while the
executive directors and their related parties shall abstain
from voting. The Group performs analysis for monitoring of
the foreign exchange structured forward contracts.

31.

B IS LB B & N FEE
2

AR BEERREH BT RBET
AR RIATAZH BEAR -
FBEREET SRR (2ENER
REHEER)  EHRRRADE S
A -

FEENTBRREREEESER
BIETHRARSE A G - M5 ER
EREABAREEINHSESRT
SRR AR A S E &R EH HR

N ]
EFineE °

(@) MR bz

SN R TS S R T A A A FESL
KRR ERERINEE RS
HE)Z R o ANEE R INE R B
FEREEGINEER S RER
BINEE  DRIEBEETRAR
BEHE - ZEEBWIIERFH IR
MR EE TR

REEMAZBEEIINERRISH
BERTESZE - LI - AR
I NGRS EAAIRRIMERB LI E
BH - BRIERERIUSRERTILE -
RIS ENTTE = S AL BB 77 i iz
SR o AEER BRI AR
EEERMAETOMALERZE
BHY -
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE  31.

MEASUREMENTS (continued)
(a) Foreign currency risk continued)
Summary of exposure

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amounts of the
Group'’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies, i.e. currency other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities, are as follows:

Financial
assets

MHEE

HK$’000
TR

As at 31 December 2015 R-—ZE—HAE+-A=+—H
RMB AR 7,752
Us$ E 120,729

As at 31 December 2014 R-E-m&E+=-HA=1+-H

BHEREERQFER

2 (8)

(a)

SRS ()

Yealsrgiadicd
RZE—RF+—A=+—8H "
REBPAINE (AR EE TR
e BB AN EE) FTER
BEEMBENER@ERT :

Notional
amounts of
derivative

Financial financial
liabilities instruments

fTEEMIA

BHaR AHR(E st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T#Ex TRET TERx

(1,569)

(62,727)

RMB AR 9,117 (1,189) 27 471 35,405
Us$ %5 129,132 (72,915) - 56,217
Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis [E=GBE DT

Since HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in HK$/US$ exchange rate. The
following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit
after tax for the year and equity in regard to a 3% change
in RMB exchange rate. The rate is used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s best assessment
of the possible change in foreign exchange rates.

HFETTEIE TN - AEETR
HATAETNER I TGREM
MEREE - TREBAEEN
FRRBIR RN R AR
ERFEEI%NEHNHEE - [E
ETRMERERABERNER
INERBRIRA - AEEEY
PE R A RE B EY 2 BRIE(LET ©
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(@)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
currency exchange rates taking place at the beginning
of the financial year with all other variables held constant
throughout the year.

BBEREERQFER

2 ®)
(a) MR (2)
EZRHRBEDWN (&)

HK$ to RMB BTRARY
If HK$ weakens against RMB 105 7T 3, A RSB (H
If HK$ strengthens against WMATHAREHE

RMB

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from interest-bearing borrowings which
are at variable rates (note 24) and the Group’s pledged
bank deposits and bank balances which were bearing
floating interest rate (notes 20 and 21). The Group has
not used any derivative to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. The policies to manage interest rate risk which
have been followed by the Group since prior years are
considered to be effective.

(b)

AEER R AR,
I B T TS B SMETE
BEE 5 LR BERF E Rk
'+ B A S SR AR
BRTRMETE -

Increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax

BB EFIE M, OBD)

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

154 307

(154) 91)
FRER

FERB S ReBIANATE
B RERTISH R M
RRE) 2 AR - KB RF EE
S EREFEFEMEE (M
24) RAEBEMEEPIRITER
RARTTEGF IR 2 8 F = (B
20 Kk21) c AEEWAEH
FRPTAE T AE R EFI R -
REBMATFROAA—EEE
FIEERECR - BREBERER
BE -
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b) Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit after tax for the year
and equity, with effect from the beginning of the years.
These changes are considered to be reasonably possible
based on observation of current market conditions. The
calculations are based on the Group’s floating rate financial
instruments held at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis has been prepared assuming these financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. There is no impact on
other components of combined equity in response to the
possible change in interest rates.

31 December 2015

“F-EE+-A=t-H

3. BKEREER AFE
2 ®)
(b) FEREE (&)
FIRGBRE DT

Increase by 100 basis points #1100 {EE 25
Decrease by 100 basis points  J5{ 4> 100 {EE 24

TRIVNEFB E MBS HERT
BZERT - ARBEZFERRPT
BRREN RS H N ZEFF)
ERZ AR RN R B 2 U
€ o ZEEBHEBERBRITIN
BIEDBEMATREHIR o SHEH TS
REBAEBRBERRAFTEZ
FEERTEET - DMIER
RBEMRBRITEZZEER
TEAREFHETEMRES -
K2R B EH AR 2 Hh
BOUETZE

2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT
54 50

(50)

113



114

Runway Global Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements 817k 7+

31 December 2015 —Z—AE+-F=+—H

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk mainly arises from granting credit to its customers in
the ordinary course of its operation.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers
and other counterparties, identified either individually or by
group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk
controls. The Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties. The Group’s management considers that all
the financial assets that are not impaired as at the reporting
date are of good credit quality, including those that are past
due. There is no requirement for collaterals by the Group.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty and by geographical region. The Group
had certain concentrations of credit risks as 73% (2014:
79%) of the total trade receivables are due from two of
its largest external customers as at 31 December 2015
(2014: two). The directors carry a periodic review on the
creditworthiness on these customers and consider the
exposure to such credit risk is minimal. Further quantitative
data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and bills receivables are disclosed in note 17 to
the financial statements.

BBEREERQFER

= ()

(c)
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has deposited its cash with various banks. The
credit risk on bank balances is limited because most of the
Group’s cash are deposited with major banks located in
Hong Kong and/or the PRC.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
facilities.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
interest-bearing borrowings, based on undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

31 December 2015

—F-af+-A=+-A

3. BKEREER AFE
2 ®)
(c) EERE &)

(d)
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE . ,\71 BKEBEERAFES

MEASUREMENTS (continueq) 2 ®)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) ”Ib@jﬁﬁﬂm (&
Specifically, for interest-bearing borrowings which contain BEME @ REARERKEREK
a repayment on demand clause which can be exercised K (RITEEBRBETE) &
at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash TREE  oMERTIRIEER
outflow based on the earliest period in which the entity can A ERERN TR (BR
be required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their BNFE AT TIE B A R T B A
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate effect. BIRERERT) HBEESRE o
The maturity analysis for other interest-bearing borrowings Hinzt EEENIH BT R
is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates. BT EREERE -

Total Less than
contractual one year or
Carrying undiscounted repayable on One year or
amount cash flow demand above
REREH —FR
REE REeREAE AREREE -—FIildt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET

As at 31 December 2015 R=-ZE-HFE+=-A=1+—H

Non-derivative financial FTEERTA
instruments :
— Trade and bills payables - BHRMNTBRENEE

— Accruals and other payables - T8I B i e E b fE (4 78
- Interest-bearing borrowings - i EfEE

As at 31 December 2014 RZT—ME+=A=+—H

Non-derivative financial FTEEBMIA

instruments
- Trade and bills payables - S RNTIERENEE 67,791 67,791 67,791 -
- Accruals and other payables - T812% Fﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁmlﬁ 14,436 14,436 14,436 -

Uﬂk

— Interest-bearing borrowings - ;T B fE* 3,131 3,260 2,302 958

85,358 86,487 84,629 958
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIRVALUE 31. i EBREE R A FET
MEASUREMENTS (continueq) 2 ®)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) d) RBESER (&)
The following table that summarises the maturity analysis of TRBSI B R E K EE B
interest-bearing borrowings with a repayment on demand SEEENREE ST - RIRIE
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set out BRI AN 1% E 8 KM
in the loan agreements. No analysis are presented for 31 RIE - RFERBEEEIEH
December 2015 following the full repayment of relevant EE%  UER-T-RF+=
borrowings during the year. The amounts include interest R=+—RBZ2351 - Bl&H
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking into BIREFEAEOFEFENN B
account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not 18 o St RASEMMBARR - B
consider that it is probable that the bank will exercise its ERBWITITE BB E AN
discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors BRHEERR - EFAE &
believe that such interest-bearing borrowings will be repaid BEEBRBRERGEANSAR
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out BIEE N HEAEE -
in the loan agreements.
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Lessthan One year or
amount cash flow one year above
REREHN
REE BREREAE —FR  —FF@uE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T FHT THT
As at 31 December 2014 RZZ—NF+-A=1+—H 2,022 2,168 667 1,501
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The fair values of trade and bills receivables, deposits and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, cash and bank
balances, trade and bills payables, accruals and other
payables and current portion of interest-bearing borrowings
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using the rates currently
available for instruments on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had foreign exchange
structured forward contracts with two creditworthy
banks in Hong Kong. These forward currency contracts
are measured using valuation techniques similar to a
forward pricing model, with the resulting value discounted
back to present value. The models incorporate various
market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, and foreign exchange spot and forward
rates. The carrying amounts of these forward currency
contracts are the same as their fair values.

31. AR EER A FE

= ()

(e)

RS MBIRR R
HATERE
EHRUGAREBKREE  #E
R EACEYSOR - 2 ERRTE
P RERRITET BHE
NHRBERENSEE  BRER
R Bt A FOR St BB Z BT
HiEby 2 A EEEREEAR
HE  REARZEIAZHRE
AHEBEZIERHE S 2 AFE
Ty Al 2 E SR UFHT -
FEERREFGHR c TAZE
REBHARKR S RE M
o

R_ZE—NFE+—_A=+—8"
AEBHEBFEMEEERIT 2R
RIS ANE BRI - %
LN LERE M IR EA A W TV 1S(E
EMBERAEAZRATEERE
P2 EERMIELETE - Z5E
N BIESIE R BRI TISE AR
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HNE 2 B R iR BRI R o 2 iR
HSNEA K BREEEE A FE
EIEI
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables present financial assets measured at
fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy
groups financial assets into three levels based on the
relative reliability of significant inputs used in measuring the
fair value of these financial assets. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset is categorised in its entirety is based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

31 December 2015 —ZE—H&E+-F=+—H

31. B EREER A FE

2 ®)

(e) REBMRRRERINA
FEFE (8)
DV ERHE

TREFIBBATERE - AR
HEA AR P BARRKRNITTE
BE - WARBRETEHENH
BEMNRXFEMEANEIZEN
WANBL RSN - UK EE
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108 HREENERDS
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIRVALUE 31. i EBREE R A FET
MEASUREMENTS (continueq) 2 ®)
(e) Fair value measurements recognised in the (e) Eéﬂ?fﬁ%ﬂkiﬂé%ﬁ%%ﬁ’ﬂ’&
consolidated statement of financial position FEFTE (&)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy Continued) N FEZRE (8)
The financial assets measured at fair value in the RS BB R e M BANR R R
consolidated statement of financial position at the reporting RATEFENTBEERBE
date are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: TEID BATH R FEZER -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E E2E EIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T FHT T
As at 31 December 2014 R=-ZE-NFE+=-A=+—-H
Financial assets at fair value AR F{EFHE BEEFA
through profit or loss EHBEENIBERE
- Derivative financial -TEeBmIA
instruments - 129 - 129
There were no significant transfers between levels 1 and 2 REZEFE B1BHFE2EZ
and no transfers into or out of level 3 during the years. N S AR - TS BE AL
HEHEIE o
32. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 32. EXERE

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide an
adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods and services
commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure and
makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio calculated
on the basis of interest-bearing borrowings over total equity. The
Group’s goal in capital management is to maintain the gearing
ratio at a reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

REENEAEEBRAEERAEE
FEKENE )  WIZARNRERE
EEVMEREOER - RERHRIE

A8 EFR -

REBETRR N E B REARE
WHEEERFEEEELFE - AEE
ERE SEERARR EETEN
BEABHLETERER - REENE
AEEBREREERBLRERE
BEKF - BTHFAFBRLE
AEBERARHEARRINOEREE
B BITHED  MERREEDER -
EETEBREILEEENRER
7% o
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33.

Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The gearing ratio is regularly reviewed by senior management.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are as
follows:

31 December 2015 —ZE—H&E+-F=+—H

32.

EXREE ®)
EEBBLEAGRERE T HR
e RMEHRNEEBRBL XN
B

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT

Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE

879 3,131

Total equity RS 4RER

135,757 122,769

Gearing ratio BEAMFELE

0.6% 2.6%

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered
into a finance lease arrangement in respect of property, plant and
equipment with a total capital value at the inception of the lease
of HK$1,238,000. This new lease arrangement replaces the
previous one in which the fixtures, furniture and office equipment
with net carrying amounts of HK$285,000 were returned to the
lessor and the related obligations of HK$318,000 were cancelled
by the lessor. The cancellation of previous lease arrangement has
been regarded by the Group as disposals of property, plant and
equipment.

33.

FEIERERS
HE-"Z-—MNWE+-_A=+—HIt#F
B AEERAAERGBEENER
48%81,238,000 8 T % - WE &
BB BERELE - WFHEL
ERELZNZE HPFREE
285,000 TTHHEE - RFL R ARE
BiRE T A KRB E£318,000
e mEAATE - BUSATALEE
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

34. AR B HBEAR R T

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THAT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

BERAME
FRBEE

Interests in subsidiaries (note () I B AR R ER (FIEE (@) 63,603
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments BAHRIE 232
Amounts due from a subsidiary A NG E e 34,679
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEE 106
35,017
Current liabilities REBaE
Other payables HAb e FRIE -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTBTE A FIZIA 180
180
Net current assets REBEEFE 34,837
Net assets EEFRE 98,440
EQUITY s
Share capital &N 6,000
Reserves (note (b)) @ (M3E o) 92,440
Total equity ERAE 98,440
On behalf of the Board REEZ=D
Hubert Tien Farzad Gozashti
Director Director
HEZ Farzad Gozashti
EFE -
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
coM PANY( Continued)

Notes:
(a) Subsidiaries

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at the reporting date are set out as follows:

31 December 2015 —E—FR&+-A=+—H

34. R RIBBERRER (&)

FE -
(a) MEAR

WS BB ARRMFHEERIIAT

Place/country of

incorporation/ Particulars of Effective interest Place of
establishment issued/paid-in held by the operation and
EMRL capital Company principal activities
Name oava:o: k- BT /B EYNSIES 2 )] MR
=L 7S RAFE BRER FEXH
Direct Indirect
Hi [SEE3
Great Entrepreneur BVI 4 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
Investments Limited HBHEBRRAES US$ 1 each in Hong Kong
4 ZRRmEE REBREER
1ETTH BB
Transformed Holdings BVI 4 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
Limited HEABRRAES US$1 each in Hong Kong
4 R E REBREERK
1ETTH)EBAR
Going Success Holdings ~ BVI 1,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
Limited HBEHERRES US$1 each in Hong Kong
1,000 IR BAREIE REBREZR
1 =T E B
Runway HK Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 100% Investment holding and
i & e 3,000,000 7T trading of apparels
in Hong Kong
NEBREZERR
KKE S
Jiaxing Runway Global PRC US$2,000,000 - 100% Manufacturing and
Garment Limited =2} 2,000,000 % 7T trading of apparels
5 ER R AR B (52 L) in the PRC
ERAT MBI R ERE &
25
Runway Fashions, Inc. USA 1,000 ordinary shares of - 100% Provision of designing,
EJE US$1 each marketing and
1,000 & 2R E(E advertising services
1R T E AR in the USA
REBITRMHRET
5 & 0 &% E & R
Harvest Celebration Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100% Operation not yet
Limited EFB 1,000/ 70 commenced
SRR ABR AR RN CE
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. AT MBARR T (#)
COMPANY(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) MiEE « (4)
(b) Reserves (b)y &
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARREERRAT

Share Contributed Accumulated

premium surplus loss Total
BRERE BB E-5 g et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—mFE—HF—H 40,690 63,583 (11,011) 93,262
Loss and total RFEEEER
comprehensive income FHWELERE
for the year - - (822) (822)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NFE+_A=+—HK
and 1 January 2015 —FT—hF—F—AH (11,833)
Loss and total NEEEE R
comprehensive income THW SRR
for the year (2,349) (2,349)
At 31 December 2015 R-B-—HE+=-A=+—H 40,690 63,583 (14,182) 90,091
Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between KRR ABGIERERNEEE TE
the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to certain EFTUEET B A RN B EFEERNRD A
reorganisation of the Group and the nominal value of the share issued by the VER AR TR D EE R =58 ©

Company in exchange thereof.
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